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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To the Members of
NEOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Neolite ZKW Lightings Private Limited
(hereinafter referred as “the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at 31st March 2025, the
Statement of Profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), Statement of changes in equity and
Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of material accounting policies and other explanatory information, (hereinafter referred fo as “the financial
statements” or “financial statements”)

In our opinion and to the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended, (“Ind AS"} and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31st March 2025, the profit and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basls for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10)

of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other matters

Without gualifying our opinion on the financial statements, we draw attention to the following matter. As stated
in Note 56 to the financial statements, the Company did not appoint an internal auditor for the financial year
ended 31 March 2024, as required by Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has since
rectified this non-compliance by appointing an internal auditor for the current financial year. Our report on the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (CAROQ) for the year ended 31 March 2024 has been
qualified on this matter.




Reporting on Key Audit Matters as per SA 701
Reporting on Key audit matters are not applicable to the Company as it is an unlisted Company.

Information other than the Financlal Statements and Auditor's Report thereon (“Other Information”)
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises various information requires under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2013 but
does not include the financial statements and our Auditor's Report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibillty for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give
true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other iregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic altemative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financia! reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audlt of the Financlal Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, Individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to



fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concem.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achleves fair presentation

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
staterents may be influenced. We consider quantitative materlality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,2020 (“the Order") issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure-
A" a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and bellef were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
AT Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.
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the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement and dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesald financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31% March,
2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, ncne of the directors Is disqualified
as on 31% March, 2025, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)
of the Act. '

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B" and

B. With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and fo the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us :

1.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31* March 2025
on its financial position in its financial statements — Refer Note 32 to the Ind AS
financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

The clause for transferming amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund is
not applicable to the Company.

a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entity ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries®) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either Individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficlaries;

c) Based on such audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(g), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

5. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.



8. Based on our examination, which Included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the financlal year ended
31st March 2025 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the
sofiware except that Audit trail feature is not enabled for application's underlying
database and for certain changes made using privileged/ administrative access rights,
as described in note 52 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trall feature being tampered
with in respect of the accounting software. The audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

C. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and according to
the information & explanation given to us, the limit prescribed by section 197 for maximum
permissible managerial remuneration is not applicable to as private limited company.

For V. Sachdeva and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number -004417N
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e (V. Sachdev)
PLACE: NEW DELHI T Proprietor
DATED: 29 September 2025 Membership No.:-083435

UDIN No. : 25083435BMJAKI6129
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ANNEXURE-A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us In the normal course of audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we report that:

1.

———

a) (i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(ii) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

b) The company has a planned programme for physically verifying all Property, Plant and Equipment
once in three years which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size and nature of assets.
During the year, the fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in accordance with
the programme and no materia! discrepancies were identified on such verification.

c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets or both during the year.

e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (46 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder.

a) The inventories have been physically verified by the management at regular intervals during the
year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification is appropriate. Discrepancies of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on physical verification of the
inventory as compared to the book of accounts.

b) The Company has been sanctioned a working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees, In
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns
or statements, filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with the books of account of
the Company except as follows:

Amount as per

For the As per books of quarterly returmn & | Discrepancies®

quarter Nature ‘;fstsh:t current accounts (amount stateyments (amount In INR

ended in INR lacs) (amount In INR lacs)

lacs)

| Jun-24 Trade payables i 6 553.52 _ 6.585.67 32.15 i
- Jun-24 | Inventories | 4676.06 | 4 676.06 ; -

Jun-24 | Trade receivables | 8120.41 | 8.102.42 | (17.99) j

Sep-24 | Trade cayables ! 6 325.49 | 6.335.68 ; 14.19 !
 Sep-24 | Inventories | 6.194.31 | 6.194.74 . 043 |
. Sep-24 | Trade receivables 8.201.38 | 8.184.37 (17.01 ;
| Dec-24 | Trade payables 6.425.88 | 8.478.25 . 5237 |
| Dec-24 | Inventories | 6,303.51 6,305.27 | 1.76 |



| Dec-24 | Trade receivables 7.832.78 [ 7 847.76 _ 14.98

| Mar25 | Trade payables | 5211.80 5 5884985 |  673.15
| Mar-25 | Inventories | 6,118.52 i 5.880.18 . [238.34 ;
| Mar-25 | Trade receivables | 892.84 i 9.727.17 (165.67) |

*these differences are mainly due to prior reporting to banks before quarterly closure of books.

a) The Company has not made investments, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loan
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured fo companies, firms, limited liability
partnership during the year. However, the Company has granted loans fo its employees during the
year. The requisite information in relation to loan to its employees is stated in table below.

" Loan amount Rs |

Particulars
— _In lacs |
- Aggregate amount of loans given to employees during the year 1317.28 _
- Balance outstanding of loans given to employees as at balance sheet | 85.41

date

b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the loans granted of employees during the
year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

¢) In the case of loans given, in our opinion the repayment of principal has been stipulated and the
repayments or receipts have been regular. Further, the Company has not given any advance in the
nature of loan to any party during the year.

d) There is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of lcans given. Further, the
Company has not given any advances in the nature of loan to any party during the year.

e) There is no loan or advance In the nature of loan granted falling due during the year, which has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to
same parties.

f) The Company has not granted any loans or advance in the nature of loan either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The Company during the year has not granted any loans to directors etc. nor it has given any loans or
guarantees or provided any security in connection with a loan to any person or any other body
corporate and also has not made any investments. Therefore, the requirement to report under clause
(iv) of para 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Therefore, the clause (v) of para 3 of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records
have been made and maintained. However, no detailed examination of the same has been carried out
by us.

a) The company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities all undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employess' state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, Goods
and Service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues applicable to it.

Except for the undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund amounting to Rs 2.31 lacs
and Income tax (in the nature of tax deducted at source) amounting to Rs 14.51 lacs, no other
undisputed amounts are payable in respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income



tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues as at the year end for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable. The details of the undisputed dues of provident fund and tax deducted at source are given in

the table below.
8. | Nameof Statute | NatureofDue | Periodto | Amountin Date of
No. | which it Rs lacs payment
| | | Pertains | |
1 | Employees’ Employer and FY 2024- 0.86 Not yet paid
Provident Employee’s 25
Funds and contribution to
Miscellaneous EPF
Provisions Act,
! 1952 U | ! |
2 Employees' Employer and FY 2023- 0.52 Not yet paid
Provident Employee’s 24
Funds and contribution to
Miscellaneous EPF
Provisions Act,
| 152 8 | |
3 Employees' Employer and Prior years 0.93 Not yet paid
Provident Employee's
Funds and contribution to
Miscellaneous EPF
Provisions Act,
| 1952 . : B —
! ! ' Total 2.31

Note:- The above mentioned amount of provident fund is outstanding on accounting pending KYC
compliances of the employees.

S. | Name of Nature of Due Perlod to Amount in | Date of payment
No. Statute ‘ which it Rs lacs
L ' | Pertalns !
1 Income | Outstanding Tax FY 2024-25 0.10 | Not yet paid
Tax Act, | deducted at Source
. 1961 | (TDS)Demand | | i e
2 Income Outstanding Tax FY 2023-24 3.43 Not yet paid
Tax Act, deducted at Source
. 1861 | (TDS)Demand | | i -
3 Income Qutstanding Tax FY 2022-23 0.07 Not yet paid
Tax Act, deducted at Source
. 1961 | (TDS)Demand | ; __f |
4 ‘Income Outstanding Tax FY 2007-08 10.91 Not yet paid
Tax Act, deducted at Source  to 2021-22
1961 = (TDS) Demand | — _ - .
Total 14.51 |

Note:- The above mentioned TDS demand is outstanding pending reconciliations of credit for certain
challans not been given by the department and other procedural matters. The same is not provided
for in the books of accounts.

b) According to the records of the Company, no disputed amount is outstanding on account of income
tax, sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, Goods and Setvice tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and
Cess.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
__Accordingly, the requirement to report on Clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

.
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10.

1.

12,

13.

14.

15.

16.

On the basis of verification of records, on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
Company and according to the information and explanations given to us,

a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or banks.

b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other
lender;

c) The term loans have been used for the objects for which they were obtained.

d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised cn short-term
basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

e) On overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken
funds from any entities and persons on account of or. to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or
associates.

f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its.
subsidiaries or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(f) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

a) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year.

b) the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in Standards on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit.

b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act wherever applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a). The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business;

(b). We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company
during the year and fill date.

The Company has nof entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with its directors, hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Saction 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order are not applicable.



17.
18.

18.

20.

PLACE: NEW DELHI
DATED: 29 September 2025

The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 48 to the financial statement , ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as
on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and
there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer.to a Fund specified in Schedule Vi
to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-section {6) of section
135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For V. Sachdeva and Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number -004417N

(V. Sachdev)
S Proprietor
~<=" Membership No.:-083435
" UDIN No. : 25083435BMJAKI6129
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ANNEXURE "B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF NEOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companles
Act, 2013 (“the Act")

Opinion

1,

Wa have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Neolite ZKW Lightings Private
Limited {“the Company”) as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such intemnal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31st
March 2025, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Interna! Financia! Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note").

Management’s Responsibllity for Internal FInanclal Controls
3. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining Internal financial controls

based on the internal control cver financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting Iissued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficlent conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policles, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Audltors’ Responsibliity
4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial

reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financia! Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatemant of the Ind AS financlal statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting

7. Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process deslgned to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements
for external purpeses in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's Internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policles and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are racorded
as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that recelpts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controle Over Financial Reporting
8. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusien or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial contral over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policias or procedures may deteriorate.

For V. Sachdeva and Assoclates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Ragistration Number -004417N
"I‘(z i/ » \\i{‘;‘%
(5[ onse=-i5 ) (V. Sachdev)
| ceomantye) Proprietor
PLACE: NEW DELHI o e Y
DATED: 29 September 2025 2 Membership No.:-083435

UDIN No. : 25083435BMJAKI6129



NEOLITE ZKW LIGIITINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No. U74899DL1992PTC050702)
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2025
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

\ Asat As at Asat
Eautian Nt 3 March2028 31 March2024 01 Ayeo 2023
Assch
Noo-curreat assets
Propery, plant and equipment 2 15,857.38 13,171.26 11,505.34
Capital work-in-progress 2 34493 100,88 -
Right-of-use assets 3 535.16 500.97 310.89
Intangible assets 4 38.10 4545 8437
Financial Assels

(i) Investmeius 5 - 044 0.34

(i} Loans 7 2159 17.59 2670

{iii} Other financial assets ] 228,60 146.71 160.44
Other non-current assets 9 587.23 970.50 164,04
Total non-current assets 17612.9% 14 983.81 1235211
Current assets
Inventaries 10 6,118.52 4,196.10 440519
Financial Assets

(1] luvestmenls 5 532.20 - -

(1i) Trade receivables ] ©,892.84 852538 9,684.84

(iii} Cash and cash equivalents 1l 2,905.46 3,948.89 281930

(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above lla 909.97 11.05 0.14

{v) Loans 7 63.82 70.00 500.55

{vi) Other finnucial agsels 8 185.07 319.89 202,00
Other current assels 9 353385 238432 1.569.74
Total curreat asscts 24,141,73 1945563 19,181.77
Total asects LIS, S0 o JLBEE
Equity and Liabilities
Equity ’

Equity share capital 12 1,179.75 1,179.75 1,179.75
Instrumeats entirely equity w nature (CCPS) 12 176.47 17647 17647
Other equity 13 16,834.51 11.61657 9,712 52
Total equity 18,190.73 12971 11,063.74
Liubilities
Nun-current llnbilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Busrowings 14 5.067.65 5,234.10 5,153.69
(ii) Lense liabilities 15 274.48 369.57 169.07
Provisions 18 461.97 324.12 286.00
Deterred tax linbilities (net) 19 $95.02 62392 59853
Total nen-cursent lia bilitles - 399.12 65171 420729
Current linbilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Bormowings 20 4,628.47 4,034.48 §,125.83
(ii) Lense linbilities 15 189.70 147,81 153.79
{iii) Trade payables
~Tutal cutstanding dues of micro and small enlarprises [ 1,046.66 434.39 -
~Tutal cutstanding dues of creditors other than niicro and small enterprises 16 4,165,134 6,305.91 6,62891
{iv) Other financial liabilities 17 1,190.97 B817.54 641.85
Provigions 18 205.64 114.36 137.08
Other curreut liabilities 21 5,443.82 2,949.55 440,18
Current tax liabjlities (net) 2 294.46 80.92 30.21
Total Currcot linblitles 17 164.86 11,884,95 14 157.86
Totul liabilities 23 563.98 21,436,685 206514
Tutul equity and liubilitics _—._‘"m _Mdi. m
Significant accounting policies and notes to financial Statements. 1-58

The acconipatying notes are an integral part of the financial staternents.
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NEOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CiN No. U74899DL1992PTC050702)

STATEMENT QF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
{All amounts in Rs. lacs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

INCOME

Revenue from operations
Other income '
TOTAL INCOME

"EXPENSES
Cost of raw malcrials and components consumed
Purchase of stock in trade

Change i inventory of finished goods, work in progress and stock in trade

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amotization expenses
Other expenses ’
TOTAL EXPENSES

Profit before tux

Tax expense:

Current tax

Deferred tax liability/(assets)

Short/{excess) tax provision for earlier years

Profit after tax for the year from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income/(loss):

1tems that will oot be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit and lous:

Defined bencfit plan remeasurements

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit and luss

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax)
Total comprehensive income for the year (net of tax)

Basic carnings per equity share (Nominal value Rs 100 per share)
Diluted earnings per equiky share (Nominal value Rs 100 per share}

Significant accounting policies and notes to financial Stalements.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Not Four the year ended For the year ended
O 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
23 51,207.50 40,298.75
24 171.51 58.88
51.179.01 40.157.63
25 23,727.88 21,391.15
26 3,692.56 429.99
27 (1,394.93) 266.65
28 7,284.69 6,106.22
29 751.53 927.07
30 1,839.19 1,548.30
31 8.251.42 7.056.78
44.152.33 37.726.18
7.226.68 241145
k) 1,972.69 701.11
34 (28.90) 25.39
34 0.48 10.47)
194427 726.03
5.282.4! 1.905.43
(87.16) (187
22.69 0.50
| 64.47) 1137
164,47 (137|
5217.94 1.904.08
39 447,76 161.51
39 389.50 149,50
1-58
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NEOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No. U74899DL1992PTC050702)

J C HFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(ALl amounts in Rs. lacs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended

S — 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Cash flows from operating activitics
Profit before tax 7,226.68 2,631.45
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amotization expenses 1,839.19 1,548.30
Unrealised foreign exchange loss 112.57 74.21
Impairment allowance for doubiful debts 40.53 83.35
Provision for warranties 50.25 -
Loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipmenis 251 (0.74)
Finance costs 751.53 927.07
Interest income {130.44) (36.56)
Bad debts written off 39.73 0.06
Gain on derecognition ot right of use assets and Jease liabilities on account @07 (9.30)
of termination and modification of leases : .
Net gain on fair valuation of investments carried at fair value through profit & loss 131.75) 10.10)
Operating profit before working eapital changes 9,896.73 5,217.24
Adjustment for changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in loans (nen-current) (4.00) 9.11
(Increase)/decrease in other financial asscts (non-current) (23.98) 13.73
(Increase)/decrease in inventories (1,922.42) 209.09
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (1,470.49) 1,076.05
Decrease in loans (current) 6.18 430.55
(Increast) in other current assets (1,149.52) (814.58)
Decrease/{increase) in other financial assets (current) 163.36 (118.64)
Increase in provisions (non-current) 50.69 36.24
{Decrease)/increase in tracle payables (1,542.98) 78.01
{Decrease)/increase in other financial liabilities {current) (218.81) 279.04
Increase/(decrease) in provisions {Current) 41.03 (22.72)
Increase in other current liabilitics 249427 2,509.36
Cash generated from operating activities 6,320.05 8,902.49
Tax paid 11,743.19) 1649.43
Net cash generated from operating activities 4,576.86 8,253.06
Cash flows from investing activities
?uyments for purc!mse of property._ plant and equipment, intangible assets, capital work (3.595.34) 4,043.81)
in progress and adjusiment for capital advances
Initial direct cost on leases capitalized under right-of-use assets (103.71) (6.25)
Proceed from sale of property, plant and equipment 21.24 71.19
ﬁ:xed deposits made with banks with original maturity of more than three months but less (898.92) (10.91)
an twelve months
Fixed deposits made with banks with original maturity of more than twelve months (54.36) -
Investment in muton! funds-quoted {500.00) -
Interest received . 105.21 37.31
Net cash (used) in investing activities 15,025.89) 13,946.47)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings (net) 189.59 512.36
Proceeds/repayment of short-term borrowings (net) 162.63 (2,564.13)
Payment of lease liabilities (including interest) (216.96) (226.70)
Finance cosls 1'729.66/ 1898.53)
Net cash (used) in financing activities | §94.40) 13.177.00)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents < N (1,043.43) 1,129.59
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year [ 3.948.89 2,819.30
Cash and cash <ul alents «f end ol e yeie” O3 - / 2,905.46 3.948.89
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Components of cash and cash equivalents
B; ces with banks in current account
Cavei on hand
* Margin money deposit with original maturity of less than three months

Fixed deposits with banks with original maturity of Jess than three months

* Total cush and cash equivalents

Note:1. The above Statement of cash flows has been prepared under the *Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS 7, ‘Stalement of Cash Flows®.

805.28 1,721.44
10.35 743
79.60 120.02

2.010.23 2,100.00
2,908.46 3,948.89

Note:2. Previous year figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to corresponds with the current year's classifications/disclosures.

Changes in liabilities arising from financin; activitics

. As at Non cash As ot
Farticulurs B ol Aprit2ozd  CUPOWS  pinoes 31 March 2025
Non current borrowings (including current maturities of
Long Term Borrowings) (refer note 14) 6,952.64 189.59 78.33 7,217.56
Current borrowings (refer note 20) 231594 162.63 - 2.478.56
Lease liabilities (reler note 15) 517.38 (216.96) 163.76 464.18

Total liabilities from finuncing activities 9,785.95

135.26  239.09 10,160.30

Note : Non-cash movement includes exchange fluctuation on foreign currency loans and finance charges on lease along with

additions and deletions made during the year.

Particulars As at Cashflows b Lo
el 01 April 2023 changes 31 March 2024
-Non current borrowings (including current maturities of
Long Term Borrowings) (refer note 14) e 512.36 LAY 6,952.64
Current borrowings (refer note 20) 4,880.07 {2,564.13) - 2.315.94
Lease liabilities (refer note 15} 322.85 {226.70) 421.22 517.38

Tuotal liabilitics from financing uctivities 11,602.37

(2,278.47)  462.05 9,785.95

Note : Non-cash movement includes exchange fluctuation on foreign currency loans and finance charges on lease along with

additions and deletions made during the year,
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NEOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN Neo. U74899DL1992PTC050702)

'‘ATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(A1l amounts in Rs. lacs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

A Eijuity share cajiitul

Particulars Nute no. Number

Amount

Equity Shares of Rs 100/- cuch issued, subseribed and fully paid
Balance us at 01 April 2023 1,179,748 1,179.75
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance as st 31 March 2024 1,179,748 1,179.75
Changes in equity share capital during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 12 1,179,748 1,179.78
B lnstruments entirels ¢ijuity in nature (Comjnlsory Convertible Nyn-Cumulutive Preference Shareg)
Particulars Note no. Number Amount
Compulsory Convertible Noa-Cumulative Preference Shares
{CCPS) of Rs 100/-cuch issued, subscribed und fully paid
Balance as at 01 April 2023 176,470 176.47
Changes during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 176,470 17647
Changes during the year - -
Balance as at 31 March 2025 I2 176,470 176.47
C Other eyuity .
Particulars Nute no. s““rf o Retained earaings Total

premivm
Balance as at 01 April 2023 as per previous GAAP 4,216.79 5,513.19 9,729.98
Add: Ind AS adjustment effect of fair valuation of investments - 0.24 0.24
Add:- Ind AS adjusiment effect (ROU Asset and ROU Liability) - (17.38} (17.38)
Add:= Ind AS adjustment effect (financial assets) - {0.32) (0.32)
Balance as at ¢1 April 2023 as per Ind AS 421679 5,495.74 9,712,52
Profit for the year - 1.905.43 1,905.43
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year - (1.37) (137
Balance as at 31 March 2024 421679 7,399.79 11,616.57
Profit for the year - 5.282.41 5,282.41
Other comprehensive {loss)/income for the year - {64.47) (64.47)
Balance as at 31 Murch 2025 13 4,216.7% 12,617.73 16,834.51

Significant accounting policies and notes to financial Statements, 1-58
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
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NEOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No. U74899DL1992PTC050702)
nificant accounting policies and other explanatory notes to financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2025

1. Corpiorate Information

Neolite Zkw Lightings Private Limited ("The Company™) is a private limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act. 1956, The address of its registered office is N-13, 2nd Floor South Extension Part=I, South Delhi, Delhi, India,
110049, The Company is primarily enagaged in the business of supplying, manufacturing and exporting of aute components, mainly automotive
hghtmg systems for four wheeler appllcauons The company's has manufacturmg facilities at Bahadurgarh & Gurgaon.

(A) Statement of Compliance

The financial statement has been prepared as a going concern in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act) read w;th the Companies (lLndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant
provision of the Act, as amended from time to time.

These financial statements were approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on 29 September 2025,
All amounts have been rounded off to the nearest lacs unless otherwise indicated.

(B) Accounting Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are
measured at fair value at end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting polices mentioned below, The accounting policies have
been applied consistently over all the periods presented in these financial statements.

{C) Use of Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates, and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may
differ from the estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revision to accounting estimates are recognised in the peried in
which the estimates are revised and in which future periods are also affected.

Material Estimates and Jud: ments

The Areas involving critical estimates or judgement are:-

(i) Defined Benefits Obligation refer note 43

(i) Estimation of useful life of property plant and equipment (PPE)

(iii) Estimation and evaluation of provisions and contingencics

{(1v) Recognition of deferred tax assets and provision for incoms tax refer note 19 and note 34
{v) Megsurgment of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets refer note 35

(vi) Fair value measurement of financial instruments refer note 44

Recent Accounting: Develojments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards} Rules as issued from time to time. With effect from 01 April 2024 MCA has notificd amendments to Ind AS 116 — Leases, relating to
sale and leaseback transactions. The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that it does not
have any significant impact in its financial statements.

On May 9, 2025, MCA notified the amendments to Ind AS 21 - Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. These amendments aim to
provide clearer guidance on assessing currency exchangeability and estimating exchange rates when currencies are not readily exchangeable, The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 April 2025,

D) Current-Non Current Classification

All agsets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.

Assets

An asset is classified os current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's normal operating cycle;

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) it is expecied to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date; or:

(d) it is cash or cash equwalent witereri- restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for a least 12 months after the reporting
date " — J
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Liabilities

" ‘ability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(w it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

(b} it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(c) it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or;

() the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

Operatin cle

Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non current
classification of assets and liabilities

E) Prope Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes items directly attributable to the construction or acquisition of the items of
property, plant and equipment. Cost of acquisition is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes, and other incidental expenses. Frechold land is measured
at cost and is not depreciated.

The cost of Property, Plant and Equipment as at 01 April 2023, the Company’s date of tranistion to Ind AS, was determined with reference to its
carrying value recognised as per the previous GAAP (deemed cost) as at the date of tranistion to Ind AS.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item ¢an be measured reliably. The cost for dayto-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss as and when incurred,

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Depreciation is caleulated using the straight-line method on a pro-rata basis from the date in which each asset is put to use to allocate their cost,
net of their residual values, over their useful life generally in accordance with that provided in the Schedule II to the Act. The estimated useful
lives of property, plant and squipment are as follows.

Assets Estimated useful lives Useful lives as jrer schedule 11
Factor Buildin: 30 vears 30 cars
Plant and Machiner. 3-15 years 15 vears
Furniture and Fixture — 10 ; cars 10 » ears
Motor Vehicles 8-10 - ears 8-10 +ears
Office Euipment 3-5cars 5vears
Electrical Installations - 10 »ears 10 v ears
Computer Eijuipment 3 vears 3 jears N

Based on internal assessment of useful lives, the management believes that its estimate of useful lives as given above best represent the period
over which management expects lo use these assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Cayital Work-in-Pro: ress

Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use at the balance shest
date & expenditure during construction period pending allocation. It also includes property, plant and equipment's in transit that are not yet
received for their intended use at the balance sheet date. Depreciation is not charged on capital work in progress until construction and
installation are complete and assct ready for its intended use.

Cayital Advances
Advances given towards acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each Balance Sheet date ane disclosed as Other Non-Current

Assets.

{F| Intanyible Assets .

Intangible Assets Acquired Scparately

Intangible assets including computer sofiware and technical know how with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation, fnmortiz.mion is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Computer software and technical

know how is amortized o\ the pofomod 3 and 5 wcermrespectively. The amortization methods, useful life and residual values are reviewed at
the end of each reporting p-.'ll'i-r-“ wid adjustid 17 iippyiriate, for any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis,
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The cost of Intangible as at 01 April 2023, the Company's date of tranistion to Ind AS, was determined with reference to its carrying value
gaised as per the previous GAAP (deemed cost} as at the date of tranistion to Ind AS,

Intangible Assets under Develojpment
Intangible assets under development comprises the cost of intangible assets that are not yet ready for their intended use at the balance sheet date.
Amortization is not charged on intangible assets under development,

{G) Financial Insfruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabilitics are initiaily measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible inte known amounts of ¢ash that are subject to an

insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturitics of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

Financial assets:- Initinl Recoznition and Mersurement
All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial agsets are held within a business whose objective is to hold these
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding.

Financial Assets nt Fair Value throuzh Other Comyjirehensive Income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OC1) if these financial assets are held within a business whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling tinancial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to ¢ash flows that are solely payments of prineipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through QCL, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gein and
losses which are recognised in profit and loss.

Financial Assets at Fair Value throuzh Profit or L

Financial assels are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss are immcdiately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at transaction price as they do not contain to a significant financing component. This implies that the
effective interest rate for these receivables is zero. Subsequently, the company applies lifetime expected credit loss model for measurement of
trade receivables,

Finanvial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as
held-for-trading, on initial recognition. Financial liabilitics at FYTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest
expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Cther financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition is also
recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilitics: These are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is a contraet that evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities. Company
recognises equity instruments at proceeds received net oft direct issue cost.

Reclassification of Financial Assets

The Company delermines classification of financial assels and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is
made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification
is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be Infrequent.
The Company's senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to
the company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model ocews when a company either begins or
ceases to perlorm an activity that is sipnificant 1o its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification dale which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business
model. The Company does [.m jestate any previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gaing and losses} or interest,
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" Company derscopgnises & financial asset only when the contragtual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires or it transfers the financial
dsstt and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss

Financial liabilities are derecognised when these are extinguished, that is when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or has expired,

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measyrement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets

and credit risk exposure;
Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are initially measured at fair value with subsequent measurement at amortized cost.
The Company follows ‘simplified approach® for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables

* The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls).

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historically observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analyzed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Write-off of Financial Assets

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full} to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery.
The management considers internal and external information up to the date of approval of financial results including probability of credit
impairment and economic forecast. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Company's recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in statement of profit
and [oss.

Offseitin: of Financial Instruments
Financial asscts and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there Is currently enforceable iegal right
to offSet the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultanecusly.

H| Measurement of Fair Values
The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and
liabilities, The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values, The Company regularly reviews
signiticant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments.

Fair values are calegorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indireetly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used to
measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hicrarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised
in its entirely in the same level of the fair value hicrarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

(1} Inventories

(i) Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. However, raw materials and other supplies
held for use in the production of finished products are not written down below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated
are expected to be sold at or above cost. In determining the cost, moving welghted average method is used.

{ii) Semi-finished goods and finished goods are valued lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost includes direct materials and direct labour and
a proportion ol manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity.

(iii) Moulds, block & dies are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value. Manufactured moulds, block & dies include direct material, direct
labour and a proportion of manufacturing overhead based on normal operating capacity.

{iv) lnventories of non-reusable waste say scrap for which facilities for reprocessing do not exist have been valued at net realizable value,

{v} Cost of inventories comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

(vi) Net realisable vali= Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necess if o mukeatesale,
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{(vii) Goods in transit are stated as a component of inventories if the significant risk and rewards of ownership have passed to the company and
» ed at actual cost incurred up to the date of Balance Sheet.

{vui) The valuation of inventories of raw material & component, traded goods and stores & spares (including packaging material) has been done
on the basis of moving weighted average method basis.

idi Revenui from Contracts with Customers

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated
to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various
discounts and scheme offered by the Company as part of the contract. Transaction price is the amount of consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third
party. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of goods and service tax (GST).

Sale of Goods

Revenue arising from the sale of goods (including moulds) is recognized when the customer obtains control of the promised goods, i.e. either at
-the delivery or dispatch of goods (based on the agreed terms of sale with the respective customers), which is the point in time when the customer

has the ability to direct the use of the goods and obtain substantially all of the remaining benetits of the goods. The Company has generally
" coneluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue from development of tools and sale of service

Revenue from sale of services 1s recognized in accordance with the terms of contract when the services are rendered and the related costs are
incurred.

The Company renders the services of customised design and development of tooling for its customers and recognises its revenue over time using
an input method to measure progress.

It recognises revenue from services of cuslomised design and development of tools over time if it can reasonably measure its progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Where the Company cannot reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but it expects to recover the ¢osts incurred in
salisfying the performance obligation, it recognises revenue only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure
the outcome of the performange obligation,

Revenue on time-and-material and unit of work-based contracts, are recognized as the related services are performed. Revenue from fixed-price,
fixed-timeframe contracts, where the performance obligations are satisfied over time is recognized using the percentage-of-completion method.

The revenue on such contracts for the period, from the date of last invoicing until the report date is recognised as unbilled revenue. Efforts or
costs expended are used to determine progress towards completion as there is a direct relationship between input and productivity, Progress
towards completion is measured as the ratio of costs or efforts incurred to date (representing work performed) to the estimated total costs or
efforts. Estimates of transaction price and total costs or efforts are continuously monitored over the ferm of the contracts and are recognized in
net profit in the period when these estimates change or when the estimates are revised. Revenues and the estimated total costs or efforts are
subject to revision as the contract progresses. Provisions for estimated losses, if any, on uncompleted contracts are recorded in the period in
which such losses become probable based on the estimated efforts or costs to complete the contract.

Warrant: oblivation
The Company generally provides for warranties for general repair of defects that existed at the time of sale. These warranties are assurancetype
warranties under Ind AS 113, which are accounted for under Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics and Contingent Assets).

Contract balances

i) Contract assets

Contract asscts is right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transierred to the customer and performance obligation satisfied. 1f the
Company performs by Lransferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract
asset is recopgnized tor the earned consideration that is conditional. Upon ¢completion of the atiached condition and acceptance by the customer,
the amounts recognized as contract asscts is reclassified to trade receivables upon invoicing. A receivables represents the Company’s right to an
amount of consideration that is unconditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment.

i) Trade receivables

A receivable is recognized if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c., only the passage of time is required before payment of the
vonsideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section *financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent
measurement”,
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iii) Contract liabilities

{ oantract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration {or an amount
or consideration is due) from the customer or has raised the invoice in advance. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers
goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or
services to the customer).

Dividend and Interest Income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established, which is generally when shareholders
approve the dividend.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on, time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable. which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

1K) Government Grants, Subsidies and Exjiort Incentives

(i) Where the grant or subsidy relates to an asset, it is recognized by deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying amount of asset. However,
when the grant or subsidy relates to an expenses item, it is recognised as Income, Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when
there is reasonable assurance that the grant/subsidy will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with,

(ii) Export incentives are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

{L] Foreiyn Currenc: Transactions
Functional and Presentation Currency
The functional currency of the Company is Indian rupee (INR).

Transactions and Balances .

Transactions in foreign ¢urrencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilitics such as cash, receivables, payables, ete., are translated at year end exchange rates.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency such as investments, property plant and equipment, inventories ete., are valued at the
exchange rale prevailing on the date of transaction.

Exchange dilTerences arising on settlement of transactions and translation of monetary items are recognised as income or expense in the year in
which they arise.

(M1 Emjilo. ee Benefits
Short Term Emjilovee Benefit-:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employse benefits and they are
recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus ete. The Company
recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employee benetits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability (accrued
expense) after deducting any amount already paid,

Post Emyjilo. ment Benefits:

Provident Funi & Enijilovec State Insurnnce

Retirement Benefits in the form of Provident Fund and ESI schemes are a defined contribution plans as the Company does not carry any further
obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis and the contributions are charged to Statement of Profit & Loss of the year
when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

Earned Leave

Leave encashment is applicable to all permanent and full time employess of the company and is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation
made at the end of each financial year using Projected Unit Credit Method. The present value of the defined benefit obfigation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government bonds. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Past-service
costs are recognised immediately in statement of profit or loss.

Gratuity )

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan™) covering eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a fump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the
Projected Unit Credit method) at the ¢nd of cach year. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of government bonds. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in aciuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. They are
included in retai |;:1‘I.Icamings in the statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in
statement of profil or|los,—— e . e
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LN& Provisions. Continjent Liabilities and Continzent Assets

b _vigion
A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources

will be required to seltle the obligation, in respect of which reliable estimate can be made.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determing the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the liability, The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest expenses.

Product Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold. The provision is based on historical warranty data
and weighting of all possible outcomes by their associated probabilities. Provisions for warrantivs are adjusted regularly to take account of new
circumstances and the impaet of any changes recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Continzent Liabilities

Wherever there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
oceurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events not wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events
but is not recognised because (a) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benetfits will be required to settle the
obligation; or (b) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. Show cause notices are not considered as
Contingent Liabilities uniess converted into demand.

Continygent Assets
Contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be realised.
However, when the reatisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognized.

(O Taxation
Income Tax expense represent the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

(_urrent Income Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the statement of
profit ond loss because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Advance
taxes and provisions for current income taxes are presented in the balance sheet after off-setting advance tax paid and income tax provision
arising in the same tax jurisdiction and where the relevant tax paying unit intends to settle the asset and liability on a net basis.

Current income 1ax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss in OCIL. Current tax items are
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction in OCI,

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach, Deferred Tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enactexd by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilitics and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends
and has ability to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and Deferred Tax For The Year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to item that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

{P} Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready fo["u s intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they o1 | Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entily incurs in connection with the borrowmg of funds. Borrowing
cost also |nul|.|x|'|,'s,\ whyre diffyrence: el L= lent re; as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. /,f’f A& 4o,
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(X Imairment

‘Lﬂ ats are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
' lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of cash intlows from other assets or groups
of assets (cash penerating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

R) Cash Flow Statement
The Cash Flow Statement is prepared by the indirect method set out in Ind AS-7 on Cash Flow Statements and presents cash flows by operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company.

{S) Segment Reporting

Operating sepments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Core Management Committee which Includes
the Managing Director who is the Chief Operating Decision Maker. The Core Management Committee examines performance both from product
and a geographical perspective. The Company has identified two reportable business segments viz. Automotive (divided in two parts viz. Lamps,
Signalling Equipment and Parts and Moulds, Dies et¢ including Design & development thereof) and Other Segment comprising Homelighting
on the basis of the nature of products, the risk and return profile of individual business and the internal business reporting systems,

(T) Lease

The Company assesses at contract Inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-valug assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-to-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Riyhi-to-use assels

The Company’s lease assets primarily vonsist of leases for land and building. The Company assesses whether a contract Is or contains a lcase, at
inception of a contract. A contract Is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and

(iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognise a right-of-use asset (*“ROU") and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and leases of low value assets. For
these short term and leases of low value assets. the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease,

The right-of-use assels are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments macde.

A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a change in an index or rate used to
determine lease payments, The remeasurement normally alse adjusts the leased assets.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash
flows.

U) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Expenditure
CSR Expenditure incurred by the Company is charged to the stalement of the profit and loss.

(Vi Earnings Per Share
The Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share ("EPS") is computed by dividing the profit after tax (loss) for the year by weighted average number of
equity share~utstanding during the year. For the purpose of calculating diluted earning per share, the net profit (loss) for the year attributable to
equity sha |hu 1du.r and the.seighted average number of share outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effect of all dilutive potential
equity shar::1L '{]: W Lghled aviy uge maprriTer of shares outstandmg during the year are adjusted for events of bonus issue and share split, if any.

\ PI ||.' ; ;/. ; e

; j

o

—



NEOLITE ZKW LIGUTINGS PRIVATE LINITED (CIN No. U74899DL1992PTC050702)

Notes to financial statenvents for the year ended 31 Mareh 2025

(All smounts in Ra. lacs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

Note 2- Property, Pluat uad Equipment

e Plant & Furnilure & Office Elecirical

Parthculurs Land Buildings Machine:« Fistures Vehicles ¥qulsment lnstallatic Computers Tetal
Groas carrylng nmount

"As ut 01 April 2023 969,17 3,241,59 16,039,46 525.48 773.67 38538 60520 346.36 12,1730
Additiona - - 2,527.17 78.54 331.18 26.70 4334 3473 3,041,867
Di lafod = 1104 96.33 - 6.52 - - = 113.89
As at 3t March 2024 969.07  32TISS 18,470.30 604.04 119833 412.08 648.53 381.03 1% R5E08
Additions - 1530 3,725 18 65.64 40347 4186 179 68.53 432077
Di:| osnie'nd usunents ) 21.60 - 13303 - - 0.03 154.66
Asat3l March 2023 969.17 3,286.85 21.173.88 669.68 1.168.78 455.94 65633 449.53 3,019
Accumulated depreciatiun .

As at 01 April 2023 - 909.29 [ %N ] 1734 406.12 206.87 1 193.62 11,421.98
For the year - 104.99 960,52 kLAY 108.38 3805 2025 25.02 1,299.31

_Dispoanle/adustments 31.25 - 6.20 - - - 3745
As at 31 March 2024 - 1,014.28 9,756.28 309.84 50851 3492 471,56 k.6d 1200083
For the year - 103.41 1,243.04 5110 121.04 46.83 21,30 3209 1,619.91
Di: | osnin/sd’ 17.17 - 113.72 0.03 13091
As at 31 March 2028 1,117.69 10,982,758 360.93 51563 351.78 49336 350.71 1.172.52
Net cari in| omount

AsotDl April 2023 969.17 237330 721845 251,74 367.55 118.51 153.39 52.74 11 555,54
An ot 31 March 2024 96917 218727 871402 29420 S00.03 107.16 1'76.98 6144 11,171.26
An at 31 March 2028 949.17 2.169,16 1L191,12 308.74 853,18 104,19 162.97 95.58 1585738
Note 1

(a) All property, plant and equipment has been pledyed as security by Lhe Conypany with vanous banks for cash credut facilities and tevim loans avauled (vefer note 14).
(b) On transition 1o Ind AS (1.6 0 Apnil 2023), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all property, plant and equp
deemetd oost of property, plant and equipment.
() Refer note 33 for contractuul commitmenis pending for the sequisinon of propurty, plant and equipmeni as at bolance sheet date.
(d) The Title doeds of the immovable propernias (other than properties where the Company 18 ihe lessee and the lease mreements are duly executed in fasour of the lesaee), as disclosed above are held in the nume of

the Company.

Note Il
‘Borrowin; cost ea | ilalised

Particulars

For the year

ended

For the your =

ended

31 Murch 2028 3] Murch 2024

Borrowing cost capitalived to yualifying assets with effactive intorest mic of 8.5% p.a

\

NI

o\

|

W

-

940
9.40

4u8
4.08

d as per the previous GAAP and vse that carrying value as




Note L1

ok B g

For the year ended  For $he year saded

Particalars 3 March2028 31 March 2024
Opening balance 10038 -
Additions duriny the year 34493 100.88
Utilizations durin: the . ear 100.88 -
Closiny bulunce 34493 100.53
Agring of Ca, Hal work-jpro;ress us at 31 March 2025 —
§ Amount in Cajiitul work-in oy ess for o jreriod of

Particulars <lieur 1=2 s vars 2-3 rvir More thua 3 s sary Totul
Plant & machinery (Projects in progress) 26493 - - - 264.93
Blectrical installntion Projects an jiopiisl §0.00 . - - 50.08
Total . E L - - 39
Acelng of Cajlial work In o) ress os at 31 Murch 2024 )

Amount in Cayltal work-In ;iro; ress for a = ried of -
Fartleylurs < ene 12 , eure 2-3.ear  More than 3 : eurs Toml
Plant & machinerv |Pro cctsin -« w18l 100.88 - o - - 100,88
Totnl 100.88 - - - 100,88
Capilal work-in-progress bul as ot the bal sheet dates are not over dus/exceeding Lhe cost compared to ils original plan, hence disglosure pertaining to over due CWIP has not been provided,

(Vs sy Puas beew intewiionlly Joii bianik)




NMEQLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No. U74899DL1992PTC050702)

votes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

Note 3 - Right-of-use assets

The Company has taken various building premises under lease arrangements from landlords for carrying out business
operations,

Information about leases for which the Company is a lessee is presented below.

Particulars Building
Gross carrying amount

As at 01 April 2023 545.40
Additions 455.5%
Dispisals/adjustments 111.38
As at 31 March 2024 889.60
Additions 363.53
Disyosals/adjustments 151.82
As at 31 March 2025 1,101.31

Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 April 2023 234.51
For the year 209.95
Disposals/adjustments 55.83
As at 31 March 2024 388.64
For the year 193.89
Disposals/adiustments B 16.38
As at 31 March 2025 566.15

Net carr:inz amount

“As at 01 April 2023 310.89
As at 31 March 2024 500.97
As at 31 March 2025 535.16
Note

As at tranisition date (i.e 01 April 2023), the Company has applied modified retrospective approach and measured right
of use (ROU) assets equal to lease liabilities. The ROU assets have been adjusted by the amount of prepaid lease
rentals and the lease liabilities relating to the lease has been recognised in the balance sheet immediately before the
date of transition to Ind AS.

The Company determines the lease-term considering factors such as the importance of the underlying asset to the
Company’s operations taking into account the location and size of the underlying building and the availability of
suitable alternatives, The Company periodically assessess the lease arrangements which involves re-evaluating any
options to extend or terminate the lease.

Leases with lease term less than 12 months where it applies the ‘short-term lease’ and ‘iease of low-value assets’
recogniti. /iy exemtiuns for these leases has been excercised by the Company.
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AEQLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No. U74899DL1992PTC050702)
ivotes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025

(All amounts in Rs. lacs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

Note-4 Intangible assets

Computer

Technical

Particulars software knowhow Total
Gross carrying amount
As at 01 April 2023 383.71 110.11 493.82
Additions 0.13 - 0.13
Disposals/adiustments - - -
As at 31 March 2024 383.84 110.11 493.95
Additions 18.04 - 18.04
Disposals/adustments - - -
As at 31 March 2025 401.88 110.11 511.99
Accumulated amortization
As at 01 April 2023 332.72 76.73 409.45
For the year 20.57 18.48 39.05
Disposals/adiustments - - -
As at 31 March 2024 353.29 95.21 448.50
For the year 10.49 14.90 25.39
_Disposals/ad ustments - - -
_As at 31 March 2025 363.78 110,11 473.89
Net carryingy amount
As at 01 April 2023 50.99 33.38 84.37
As at 31 March 2024 30.55 14.90 45.45
As at 31 March 2025 38.10 0.00 38.10

Note

(2) On transition to Ind AS (i.e 01 April 2023), the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
intangible assets measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as deemed cost of intangible assets.

(b) Intangible assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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NEOQLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED {CIN No. U74899DL1992PTC050702)

N._ .5 to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(All amounts in Rs. lacs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

5 Investments As at 31 Murch 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at 01 April 2023
Investment carried at fair value through Profit or Loss Non-¢urrent Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
Investment in mutual funds-quoted
SBI ESG Exclusionary Strategy Fund Regular Growth
213,858 units (31 March 2024; 213.858, 01 April 2023: 213.858) - 0.48 0.44 - 0.34 -
Aditya Birla Sun Lile Moncy Manager Fund - Growth
36,749.4000 units (31 March 2024: Nil, 01 April 2023: Nil) - 13343 - - . -
ICICI Prudential Money Market Fund - Growth
35,788.9660 units (31 March 2024: Nil, 01 April 2023: Nil) - 133.23 - - - -
Nippon India Arbitrage Fund - Growth
5,06,562.3380 units (31 March 2024: Nil, 01 Aprif 2023: Nil} - 132.42 - - - ‘-
Tata Arbitrage Fund - Regular Plan - Growth
0,38,285.8560 units (31 March 2024: Nil, 01 April 2023: Nil} - 13263 - - - -

- 532,20 0.44 - 0.34 -
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 500.10 0.10 - 0.10
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 532.20 0.44 0.34

6 Trade reccivables {unsecured but considered good) 3l M‘:::::zoz 5 31 M:::I:lez 4 0l A_:;thm
Considered good $.892.34 8,525.38 9,684.84
Credit impaired 70.55 144.04 67.82
Total 9,963.39 8.609.41 9,752.66
Less:- Allowance for expected credit loss 170.55) i 144.04) 67.82i

9.492.84 8,525.38 9.0%4.84
For trade receivables apeing schedule refer to note 37.
Information about the Company’s expusure to credit and market risks, and impairment losses for trade receivables is included in note 45.

7 Loans (unsccurcd but considered good) As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at 01 April 2023
Particulars Non—current Current Nun-current Current Non-current Current
Loan to employees 21.59 63.82 17.59 70.00 26.70 500.55

21.59 63.82 17.59 70,00 26.70 500.55

8 Other financial assets {unsceured but considered pood) As at 31 March 2028 Asat 31 March 2024 As at 01 April 2023
Particulars Non-current Current Non-¢urrent Current Non-current Current
Security deposit* 174.24 35.68 146.71 3893 160.44 6.80
Export incentive receivables - 11523 - 274.15 - 191.25
Interest accrucd on deposits - 24.89 - 3.20 - 3.95
Other advances - 9.27 - 3.02 - -
Margin money deposit with original maturity of more than one
year*®, 54.36 - . - - -

225,60 185.07 146.71 319.89 16044 202.00
Related parties
*Security deposits (refer note 41) 11.58 34.80 8.00 34.80 39.63 -

*"Margin meney deposits with banks having car'rying amount of Rs 54.36 lacs for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: Rs Nil, 01 April 2023: Rs Nil) are
subject Lo first charge Lo securc the bank guaruntees and buyers credit facilities sanctioned by the bunk.

9 Other assets (unsceured bat considered good) As at 31 March 2025 Ag at 31 Murch 2024 Asat 01 Apri-l 2023
Particulars Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-current Current
Capital advances* 587.23 - 970.50 - 164.04 -
Advances uther than capital advances** - 1,998.96 - 1,798.39 - 1,236.31
Prepaid expenses - 290.17 - 125.94 - 113.49
GST refund receivable - 225.46 - 17537 - 2434
Balance wilh stalutory authorities - 1,019.26 - 284.63 - 195.60

587.23 3.833.85 970.50 2,384.32 164,04 1.569.74
Related parties
*Capital advany=s (ref .notf:'._d4_l,g - - -
**Advarkes oflior than chollal gufamics (refer note 41)~ . ¢ - 0.23 694.99
‘ -~
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ventories

Asat Asat Asat
.o per inventory taken valued & certified by the management . .
and valued at lower of cost or net realisable value) R ITE B Ll P 01 April2023 .
Raw materials and components 2.504.94 1,957.11 1,965.77
Work in progress 3949.90 352.57 485.39
Work in progress- dies & moulds 676.71 438.44 340.58
Finished goods 1,583.74 1,135.55 1,364.11
Finished Goods-dies & moulds 142,63 - -
Goods in transit
=Finished gouds 297.31 55.85 59.00
=Dies & moulds 27.03 - -
=Stock-in-lrade 250.04 . -
Consumable, spare & stores (including packaging material) 236.23 256.57 190.35
6.118.52 419610 410819
. As at As at Asat -
Cash nud cash equivalents - 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Balances wilh banks in current account 805.28 1,721.44 1,559.19
Cash on hand 10.35 7.43 10.57
Margin money deposit with original maturity of less than three months® 79.60 120.02 49.54
Fixed depusits with banks with original maturity of less than three months** 201023 2.100.00 1.200.00
2.905.46 394889 281930

* Margin moncy deposits with banks having carrying amount of Rs 79.60 lacs for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024; Rs 120.02 lacs, 01 April 2023: Rs

49.54 lacs) are subject to first charge to secure the bank guarantees and buyers credit facilities sanctioned by the bank,

& The deposits maintained with banks comprises time deposits which can be withdrawn by the Company al any point without prior notice or penajty on the principal.

Bank balances vther than cush and cash equivalents

Margin monuy deposit with original maturity of more then three
month but less than une year*

Fixed deposit with original maturity of more then three month but
less than one year**

As pt Asat Ay at
31 March 2025 3t March 2024 01 April 2023
6.97 11.05 0.14
903.00 = -
90997 1105 0.4

*Margin moncy deposits with banks having carrying amount of Rs 6.97 lacs for the year ended 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: Rs 11.05 Iacs, 01 April 2023: Rs 0.14

lacs) are subject to first charge to secure the bank guarantecs and buyers credit facilitics sanctioned by the bank.

** The deposits maintained with banks comprises Lime deposits which can be withdrawn by the Company at any point without prior notice or penalty on the principal.
The Company has fixed deposits with schedule banks amounting o Rs 903 lacs with original maturities beyond twelve months. However, the same are withdrawble on
demand subject to prepayment penalty of 1% on interest. Based on the Company liguidity management policy and intended use, the said deposits have been classified as

current asscts under "Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents".

(1l space has been intentiomailly beft blauk)
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NEOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No, U74899DL1992PTC050702)
N. . to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Aun-amounts in Rs. lacs, except share dato and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

12 Equity share capital and lastruments entirely equity in nature l MA" .hlz 25 i ) “2 2 1 A:I: ;

Authorized share capital

20,00,000 (previous year 20,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 100/- each 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00

7,00,000 {previous year 7,00,000) Compulsory Convertible Non-

Cumulative Preference Shares (CCPS} of Rs 1(0/- each 700.00 700.00 700.00
2,700,00 2,700,040 2,704.00

Issued, subscribed & paid-up capital

11.79,748 (previous year 11,79,748} Equity Shares of Rs 100/ each fully paid up 1,179.75 1,179.75 1,179.75

1,76.470 (previous year 1,76,470) Compulsory Convertible Non-

Cumulative Preference Shares (CCPS) of ¥ 100/-¢ath fully paid e 176.47 176.47 176.47
1,356.22 : 1,356.22 1,356.22

A) Terms/rights attached to each cluss of shares

1. Equity Shares

&) The company has only one class of shares referred Lo as equity shares having a par vaiue of Rs 100/~ each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share.

b) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

2, Compulsory Convertible Non- Cuniulutive Preference Shares (CCPS)

#) The Company has Compulsory Convertible Non-Cumulative Preference Shares {CCPS) having face value of Rs 100/- each.

b) The CCPS carry a right to a preference dividend @U.1% per annum in relation to the paid-up capital.

c) In the case of liquidation, the holder of the CCPS shall be entitled to a preferential right of return on the amount paid-up or deemed to have been paid-up. The remaining
assets and funds of the company available for distribution to shareholders shall be distributed among the holders of CCPS and the balance among equity shareholders based on
the number of share held by each of them.

d) The CCPS shall be compulsory convertible into equity shares simultaneously on or after the sale of 26% shares held by ZKW Group GMBH in the Market or to Rejesh Jain
& Associales or 1o any third party buyer.

¢) The-conversion of CCPS into equity shares shall be made at price and ratio to be approved by the Board which, in any case, shall not be less than the ratio of one CCPS to
one equity share.

f) The CCPS have been ¢lassified as equity instruments as;

- There is no contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset

= The dividend obligation has been waived irrevocably

- Conversion is mandatory making the instrument legally equivalent to an equity instrument

- Number of equity shares 1o be issued un conversion is fixed

B) Details of shareholders hulding more than 5% equity shares ia the Company

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at 01 Ajiril 2023
Nume of the Shureholder Noof No of Noof
shares held % held  shares held % held shares held % held
Rajesh Jain 793,012 67.22% 793,012 67.22% 793,012 67.22%
ZKW Group GMBH 306,735 26.00% 306,735 26.00% 306,735 26.00%
Pramod Plastic Industries Private Limited 80,001 6.78% 80,001 6.78% 80,001 6.78%

The Sharcholding represents the legal ownership of the shareholder

C) Details of sharcholder holding more than 5% Preference shares (CCPS) In the Company

As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at 01 April 2023

Name of the Shureholder No. of No. of No.of
' shares held % held  shares held % held shares held % held
Neokraft Global Private Limited 65,058 16.87% 65,058 36.87% 65,058 36.87%
Pramod Plastic Industries Privale Limited 111,412 63.13% 111,412 63.13% 111,412 63.13%

The shareholding represents the legal ownership of the shareholders.
D) There is no chunge in shure cupitul of the Compuny during the reporting period.

E} Recoagiliation uf share capital

Eijuit: shares
. As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As at 01 Ajril 2023
Particulurs 3 T E—] —————
Number of shares Number of shares Numniber of shares
Opening balance | — 1,179,748 [,179,748 1,179,748
Shares issued durii Lt} yuir — - - -
Closing balance :_ i o 1,179,748 1,179,748 1,179,748 -

) . i j'i,-,l} ! ‘ | I(I/
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“nmyulse: v Convertible Non-Cumulative Preference Shares | CCPS)

Particulurs _Asat 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 An at 01 April 2023
Number of shures Number of shares Number of shares
Opening balance 176,470 176,470 176,470
Shares issued during the year - - -
Closing balance 176,470 176,470 176,470

F) Equity shureholling of promuters/promoter group and changes therein.

Particulars = As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 % change during the ; ear )
No. No.

Promoter name of shures ol of shares sl change FAIchangy

Rajesh Jain 793,012 67.22% 793,012 67.22% -

ZKW Group GMBH 306,735 26.00% 306,735 26.00% "

Pramod Plastic Industries Private Limited 80,001 6.78% 80,00 6.78% -

G) Compulsory Convertible Non-Cumulative Preference Shures (CCPS) shareholding of promoters/promoter group and changes therein.

As at 31 March 20258 As ut 31 March 2024 % chanze during: the sear

L LG L) 05 % held o % held change % change
ufshares of shares
Neokraft Global Private Limited 65058 36.8™% 65,058 36.87% -
Pramod Plastic Industries Private Limited 111,412 63.13% 111,412 63.13% - -
. As at As at As at

13 Other equity 31 Mareh 2028 31 March 2024 0L Aoril 2023
Securities premium
Opening & clusing balance 4216.79 4216.79 4:16.79

4,216.79 4,216.79 1,216.79

Surplus-Opening balance 7,399.719 5,495.74 3,950.82
Add:- Profit after tax 5,282.41 1,905.43 1,562.37
Add:- Other comprehensive (luss)income for the year (64.47) (137 -
Add:- Ind AS adjustment effect of fair valuation of investments - - 024
Add:- Ind AS adjustment efTect {(ROU Asset anxi ROU Liability) - (17.38)
Add:- Ind AS adjustment effect {financial assets) - ) - (.32
Surplus-Closing balaace 12,617.73 7.399.79 5.495.74
Totul 1683451 II.GIG.S'I_ 9,712.

Nature and purpose of other reserves
Securitics premium

Securilies premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. This balance can be utilised in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Retained earnings
Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to
shareholders. Retained earnings inelude re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

(T hix spane Dues boen intentionadly Lft blank)



NEQLITE ZKW LIGIITINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No. U74829DL1992FTC050702)

.N¢
(b
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14 Borrowings {(nun-current, financiul lisbilities)

f

J

As ut 31 March 2028 Az at 31 March 2024 As at 01 Aprk 2023
Noun~current Current Noo-turrent Current Nono-curreat Current
Secured louas
Tem loans - Rupee 1.121.38 594.02 81521 352.21 1,167.42 281.78
‘Term loans = Foreign currency 1,751.84 1,201.54 2.210.25 1,053.65 1,690.55 67443
Vehicle loans fron banks 4l6.09 130.52 23725 93.63 105.29 70.51
Unsecured loans
Rupee loan from bank 584.11 - 1.971.38 219.04 2,190.43 219.04
Foreign ourrency loan from bank 1.193.74 223.83 - - - -
506768 2L S0 1718E SIS 124836
Segured Term Loun from banks
Outstanding amount
S.n0. Facility detuils Security Loaa type Asat As at A at
i . 31 March 2023 | 31 Murch 2024 | 01 A;ril 2023
| |During the year suded 31 March 2019 the Company had 1. Stocks and Book Debis- First pari passu Foreign currency loan 64.25 125.17 185.14
taken term loan facility of Rs 500 lncs from HDFCI charge on current agsets of the Company
Bank Limiled for & tonure of 7 years 10 be repaid in 26 both  present  and  fitwe  (excluding
oqual quariecly instalments afier a maratorium period of|receivables financed by HDFC Bank
6 months, Limited).
2, Plant and machinery - First charge on
During the financinl year ended 31 March 2020 the said movable fixed asmsets (MFA) of the
rupee loan wos cunveried mio foreign currency loan|Company buth peesent and future.
(USD) with balance outslanding of Rs 331.67 lacs on 3. Personal Guarnatee- Personal Guarantee
date of conversion retaining the onginal repoyment of Mr Rajesh Jain and Me Vaisholi Jain.
ternzs. 4, lmmoveble Fixed Assets- Exclusive
charpe by way of equitable monpgaye (EM)
During the financial year ended 31 March 2021 onof Land and Building Plot ao 36, 4B,
amount of Ry 27.63 lacs equivalent to 2 instalments lndustrial Estate Bahadurgach.
along with interest of Re 6.23 laca equivalent of 4
months interest have been converted by bank to rupee
loan which is repayable along with last instalment of the
loan ¢n account of moratorium sanctioned an per RBI
Guidelines due to Covid-19 pandemic.
(a) The foreign currency losn currently carries an
interest rate of 5,75 % p.a.
(b} The rupee loan currenlly carries au interest rale ol
9.20% p.a. The interest is poyable on monthly basis.
| Ruwui loan 33.86 33.86 33.86
2 (During the year suded 31 March 2020 the Company had| 1. Stocks and Book Debts- First pari passu Foreign currency loan 413.81 639.73 864.20
taken term loan facility of Rs 1,050 lacs from HDFC cherge on current assets of the Company
Bauk Limited for a tenure of 7 years to be repaid in 60| both present and futwe (excluding
equal monthly instalments afler & moratorium period o-lrecei\'ablel finonged by HDFC Bank
2 vears, Limited).
|2. Plant and machinery - First charge on
Further, during the same year part of the said rupee loan movable fixed assets (MFA) of the
was converted inlv foreign currency loan (USD) with| Company buth present and future,
balancs ocutstading of Hs 59503 lecs on date of 3. Persoual Guarantee- Personsl Guaraniee
conversion retaining the vriginal repayment terms. of Mr Rajesh Jain and Ms Vaishali Jain.
4. [nunovable Fixed Assets- Exclusive
During the yeor ended 3] Muorch 2021 the remaining charge by way of eguitable nurtgage (EM)
amount of rupes loan was also converted inko foreign of Land and Building Plot no 36, 4B, I
currency loan with balance vutstanding of Rs 461.75 Industrial Estate Bahadurgarh.
lacs on dale of conversion retaining the original I
repaynent terms.
Duning the financial yewr ended 3t March 2021 an
nmount of s 19 Incs equivalent lo 4 month interest have
been gunverted by bank 1o rupee foan which is repayable
along with lamt instalment of the loan on accowit o
moraturium sanctivned as per RBI Guidelines due to
Covid-19 pandemic,
(a) The foraipn cucrency loon carries an interest rute
ranging from 4.2)% p.a 1o 5.15 % p.a.
(b} The rupee I/ia <y .ies an inlerest rote of 9.50% p.a.
The interest is #iyabk on monthly basis,
I ' Rugve loan 1900 19.00 19.00
=7 I — <
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During the year emded 31 March 2022 the Company had
taken foreign cumency term loan (USD) {FCNR) facility
il Rs 1800 lngs from HDFC Bank Limited for a tenure
of § years to be repaid in 48 equal monthly instalments
afier a moratorium of | year. The loan carries an interest
rate of 5.88% p.a. The interest is payable on monthly
basis

| During the year ended 31 March 2023 the Company hod
taken term loan facility of Rs 1,800 lncs from HDFC
Bank Limited for a tenure of 5 years to be repaid in 60
equal monthly instalments.

During the current financial year the amount of rupee
loan disbursed in the peevious financial year was
converted into foreign currency loan (USD) with balance
outstandling of Rs 90542 lace en date of convemion
retaining the origiual repayment terms. Furiher, during
the current year remaining amount of lean disbursed by
bank amounting to Rs 829 lacs wns aleo converied into
foreign curmency loan (EURO) with balance outilanding
of Rs 829 lacs on date of conversion retaining the
wriginal repayment terms.

on current assets of the Company both
present and fitwe (excluding receivables
financed by HDFC Bank Limited).

2. Plant and meachinery - Firgt charge on
movable fixed nusots (MFA) of the
Company both present and future,

3. Personal Guaraatoe- Personal Guarantee
of Mr Rojesh Jain and Ms Vaishali Jain.

4, lmnwvable Fixed Assets- Exclusive
charye by way of equitable morigage (EM)
of Land and Building Plot no 36, 4B,
Industrial Estate Bahadorgarh.

1. Stocks and Book Debts- Exclusive charye| Forsign currency loan

983,01 151786 131566

charge on cwrent essets of the Company
buth present and future (exchxding
receivables financed by HDFC Bank
Limited).

2. Plaut and machinery = Exclusive chame
on moveble fixed assets (MFA} of the
Company both present and fitwre,

3. Personal Cusraniee- Personal Cuarantee
of Mr Rajesh Jain and Ms Vaishali Jain.

4. Immovable Fixed Assets- Exclusive
charge of unit-l at Plot no 36, Seclor-4B,
HSIDC Industrial Area. Bohadurgarh-
124057 and Farm no.4, 3rd Avenue, Bandh
Road, Chattarpur, New Dulhi-110074

The USD loan carries an interest rate of 6.40% p.a. axl

EURU loan carries on interest rate of 3.30% p.a. The
interest is payoble un monihly bouis.

I. Stocks and Receivables Exclusive Foroign curency luvan

‘During the year ended 31 March 2022 the Company had Extension of second ranking charge over Rupee loan

taken Guaranteed Emeryency Credit Line (GECL) of Rs
200 Incs frons HDFC Bonk Limited for a tenwe of 5
years to be repaid in 48 equal nonthly instalments afler
a mioratorium of | year. The loan carries an interest rate
0f9.25% p.a.. The interest is payable on moothly basis.

During the ysar ended 31 March 2021 the Company had
taken Guaranteed Emergency Credit Line (GECL) of Rs
977.10 locs from HDFC Bank Limited for a tenure of 5
years to be repaid in 48 equal monthly instalments afier
8 moratorium of | year. The loan carries an interest mte
0f 9.25% p.a.. The interest is payable on monthly basis,

During the year ended 31 March 2023 the Compuny had
taken Guaranteed Emorgency Credit Line (GECL) of Re
563.50 lacs from HDFC Bank Limited fur  tenure of 6
years to be repnid in 48 equal monthly instalments after
& moratorium of 2 years. The loan carries an intorest rate
0f9.25% p.a.. The intecest is payablo ou monthly basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2025 the Company had
taken term loan fagility of Re 750 Incs from HDFC
Bank Limuted Tor a 1enwa of 5 years to be repaid in 60
oqual munthly instalments. The luan camics an intercel
rate of 8.40% p.a.. The iniercst is payable on moenthly
basis.

existing primary snd collaternl securities
inciuding morigages created in favor of the
Bank and security created over the
hypothecated assets of the borrower out oI:
this facility. I

Extension of secund ranking charge over Rupee loan
existing primary and collateral socurities
including murigagen created in favor of the
Bank aud Security created over the
hypothecated assets of the borrower out ol
this facility.

1.490.31 981.16 |

3750 87.50 137.50

231,78 46355 65533 |

Extengion of second ranking charge over Rupee loan
eximting primary and collateral securities|
including mortgayes created in favor of the
Bank.

493,06 563.50 563.50

1. Stocks and Book Debis- Exclusive charge| Rupes loan
on cwrenl assets of the Company both
present and fiture (excluding recesvables
financed by HDFC Bank Limited).

2. Plant and machinery - Exclusive charge
ou muvable fixed nssets (MFA) of the
Compnusy both present and future,

3, Personal Guarantee- Porsonal Cunrantee
of Mr Rajesh Jain and Ms Vaishali Jain. |
4, Immovable Fixed Assets- Exclusive
charge by way of equitable mortgaye (EM)
of Laml and Building Plot no 36, 4B,
liadustrial Estate Bahadwyarls

750.00 -




9 |During the year ended 31 March 2025 the Company had| I. Stocks and Boak Debts- Exclusive charge Rupee loan 150.69
availed term loan facility of Rs 5,550 lacs from HDFC|on current asssts of the Company buth
tank Limited for a tenure of 8 years to be repaid in 28|presant and finure (excluding receivabies
equal quarterly instalments afler a moratorium of | year.! finances] by HDFC Bank Limitexl).
The loan cerrics an interest rate of 8.40% p.a. Thei2, Plant and machinerv - Exclusive charge
interest is payable on nionthly basis. on movable fixed assets (MFA) of the
Company both present and future,
3. Personal Guarantee- Fersonal Guaraniee
of Mr Rajesh Jain and Ms Vaishali Jain.
4, Immovable Fixed Assets- Exclusive
charge by way of equitable mortgage (EM)!
of Land and Building Plot no 36, 4B,
Indusiriol Estate Bahadurgach.

Total 4.1.69.28 4.431,33 141413

Maturir, jrofile of secured term loans from | rujiee and foreis s currenc: loans from bonk |
I-2 euns 2-3 . eann 3=4+urs i ond 4 1 enrs
Maturity profile of term lvans 135393 692.91 590.76 236.11

Vehicl Lt

= Ouatanding umount
S.no. Facility detuils Security Loun type As at Asat | As at
(| _ 31 Murch 2023 | 31 Murch 2024 | 01 Ayril 2023
| 1 |The Compauy las aveiled vehicle loans from HDFC|The vehisle loan are seured by way o Rupee loan 546.60 | 330.89 175.80
Bauk Limited and ICICi Bank Limited. The lvans carmes| Hypothecation of vehicle and Personal |
rato of interest ranging from @ 10% to 13.5% p.a. The|Guarantes of Mr Rajesh jain in case of
|interest i |\ vnble on monthl. busis. commercial vehicle. |

Totul 546.60 33089 175,80

Muturis; jrofile of vehicle louns from bunks -
1-2 venrs 2-3 « eurs 3~ s enrn Be:ond 4 - eurs
Maturity profile of vehicie lonn 127.39 125.54 95.71 67.45

Ipsgeured Term Loun fr

Outstanding amount
S.no. Facility detuils Becurity Loua type Asat As nt Asut
! l | 31§ March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 01 A 11 2023

1 | During the year ended 31 March 2018 the Company had The loan is unmecured ps far as the/Rupee loan 58411 2,190.42 240947
taken Loan of Ry 2,720 lacs against socusity of property Company is concerned as no security of the
owned by Neometol and Electcicel Industries Private| Company is given to the bank. However,
Limited from HDFC Limited for n tenure of L5 years to|the loan is secured agniust the propery of
be repaid in 180 equal monthly instalments, related party as mentioned below:

During the yeor ended 31 March 2023 HDFC Bank|l. lmmovable Fixed Assets- Exclusive
Limited has taken over the said Loan Against Property|charge on Farm no.4, 3rd Avenue, Bandh
(LAP} loan from HDFC Limited outstanding amount o/ |[Road. Chattarpur, New  Delhi-110074
Ru 2,576.90 lacs on the date of take over retnining the owned by M/s Neo Molal and Electrical
original repayinent terms. Inclustries Private Limited,

2. Corparate Guarantee= M/s Neo Metal and
Fusther, during the financiol year part of the Loan|Electrical Industries Private Limited.
Againgt Proporly bas boen converted into forsign
vurrency loan with balance outstanding of Ra 1.417.56
lacs on the date of conversion retaining original
repayment terms. An mnount of Rg 584,11 lacs
continued to remain rupee term loan.

(a) The rupee loan camies au interest rte of 8.21 % p.a..
(b) The foreign cumency loan camies an inturest rate of
6.40% p.a.. The intercst is pavable on moathly bosis,

Foreiut ewrrene: luan 141757 | -

Total 200168 219042 101947

Maturii: profile of unsecured loan from bank
1-2 sears 2-3 » ears 34 v ears Bevond d v rury
Maturity profile of unsecured loan 223.83 223.83 223,83 1,106.37

[ iz gpene bues bven dfemtinsclly Rft Wos)
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15 Leuse liabilities Anat 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 Asnt 01 April 2023

Nun-current Current Noa-turrent Curreat Noo-current Current
Leage liability (as per Ind AS 116) 274.48 189.70 369.57 14781 169.07 l_53.79
274.48 __18%.70 369.57 14751 169.07 15379

(i) Refer uote 35 regarding information about leages for which the Company is a lessee.

Asat  Asat Asat
16 Trade payables 31 March 2028 31 March 2024 0L Aurli 2023
Total outstanding duwes of mucro and small enterprises ) 1.046.66 434.39 .
Total outstanding dues ol creditors other than micro and smnll enterprises 2,687.55 2,810.26 6,628.91
Other payables® 1 477,60 3.495.65 .
EI L30 ‘I’iﬁg mﬂ‘

For trade payables ageing schedule refer to note 38. Further, refor note 49 for disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Eaterprises Development Act, 2006 ("MSMED Act, 2006,

*Other payabie pertamed to vendor bill discounting facilitics obtained under TReDS scheme annuunced vide MCA Nutification issued 21 November 2018 for MSME's. Balance outstanding towards
bauks ig Re 1,273,08 laos (3] March 2024: 2,997.50 lacs. 01 April 2023: Rs Nil) and to non-banking finauce companies is Rs 204.52 lacs (31 March 2024: Rs 498.15 lacs, 01 Agril 2023: Rs Nil). The
facility carry interest ranging from 9.25% to 9.70% with tenor of 60 to 120 days.

ST As at Asat Asat
R 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 Ayl 2023
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 16.75 346 .l
Interest accrued and doe on burrowings 8.11 42.39 5144
Creditors for capital expenditure 693.08 79.83 174.49
Payable to employeey 304.88 302.38 265.20
Other pavable (includes acerued oxpense/liabilities) 121.16 3047 97.61
Trade security depugits - 47.00 49.00 50.00
1,190.97 81754 Y T
18 Provisions As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024 As st 01 April 2023
Non-curcent Current MNov-curreat Current Non-current Current
Provisivn for retirenent benefits
Leave encashment 118.36 18.60 7844 11.59 62.12 23,85
Gratuity 34361 lil13 245.68 77.18 223.88 72.84
Provisiun for warmrantics - 75.858 - 25.60 - 40.39
619" 205,64 324.12 114.36 20, 00 137,08

Pryvision fur wermatics
The company gives wasrantios on certain products and services, undertaking to repair and roplace the items that fails to perform satisfactorily during the warranty period. Provision made as at the yoar
end ropresents the amuunt of the expected cost of moating such obligation of rectification or replacement. The timing of the outflow is expected to be within warranty period.

Provision for warrantica
For the year ended For the year endsil
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Opening balance 25.60 40.39
Addition 50.25 -

Utilization - 14.79
Clasing; bal - 75.85 25.60

19 Deferred tax liubilitles (aet) Asat ] ok

31 March 2028 31 March 2024 01 April 2023

Deferred tax Liubility
Property, plant and equipment & intangible assols 932.54 820,96 73548
932.54 N 820.96 738,48
Deferred tax ussets
Provision far gratuity 114.45 81.26 74.68
Provision for leave encoshment 3449 22,66 21.64
Provision for bonus 14.68 13.71 13.10
Lease Liabilitios B.I8 - -
Uthers : 165.71 79.42 2754
337.52 197.04 136.96
Net deferred tux linbility §95.02 623.92 $98.53
(1 hie e sy been itemtiomaly b Wawk)
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Movement in deferred tnx linbilities and deferred tax nssets

. Asat Recognised in Profir & Asat
ST 31 March 2028 Loss 31 March 2024
Movement Lo deferred tox lLabilities
Property. plant and equipment & intangible asseta 932.54 111.57 820.96
Total (a) 532.8 151.87 820.96
Movemeat in deferred tax assets
Provision for leave encashment 3449 11.83 22,60
Provigion for gratuity 114.45 3109 B1.26
Provision for bonus 14.68 098 13.71
Loase liabilities 818 8.18 -
Others 165.71 §6.29 T9.42
Total (L) 182 140.47 197.04
Net deferred tax liubility (a-b) 595.02 128.90) 623.92
. Asat  Recogaised in Profit & Asat
SR 31 March 2024 Laxs 0% April 2023
Movenwnt in deferred tox linbilities
Property, plant and equipment & intangible assets §20.9%¢ 85.48 735.48
Total (a) 820,96 3548 735.48
Movenwnt in deferred fnx assels
Provision for lenve encashment 22,66 1.02 21.64
Provision for gratuity B1.26 6.58 74.68
Provision for bonus 13.71 0.60 13.10
Others 79.42 51.88 21.54
Tuotal (b) 197,04 60,08 136.96
Net deferred tax liability {a-b) 623,92 53 598,53
. , As at As at As at
20 Boerowings (current, financial liubilities) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 Ayl 2023
Secured louns
Workiny capitnl loans repayable ou demand from banks 247827 2,284.29 3,323.62
Foreign currency working ¢apital loan repayable uvn demand from banks - - 19121
Bill discowntiug facility availed from banks 3136 1,354.95
Current matusities of long-term burrowings (refer note 14) 2,149.9%0 1.718.54 1,245.76
Unsecured loan
Loan from related pany (refer note 41) b.29 0.29 0.29
Working capitul fogilificy
Outstanding smouat
8.00. Facility detuils Security Luoan type As st | Asat Asut
| | 1 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 01 A;ril 2023
| |The Company hos availed cash credit facility of Rs|l. Stocks and Book Debts- First pari passu Rupes loan 2,478.27 228428 3,323.62
3,700 lacs and packing credit facility of Rs 1,000 lacs change on current assets of the Compeny
carryiny interest role ranging from 8.25% 1o 8.5%.. The both  peesent  and  Ruure  (excluding
iuterest is paynble on monthly basis, receivables financed by HDFC  Bauk
Limited).
2. Fan aud machinery - Furm charge on
movable fixed nswets (MFA) of the |
+|Company both present and future,
3. Personal Guorantec- Personal Guaranise I
of Mr Rajesh Join and Ms Vaishali Jrin,
4. Immovable Fixed Assets- Exclusive
charge by way of equitable morigage (EM}
of Land and Building Plot nv 36, 4B,
ldusirial Estnte Bahadurgnrh, | 1
i Forei_n curren: - loan = | 191.21 |
Tatal 2A78.27 184,28 3.514,83
Unseeured Loug frem dircetors
Oubstandin: amount |
S.no. Facility detuiln Security Loun type | _ Asat As at As at
M March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 01 A;ril 2023 |
1[Mr. i1:/esh Jain [ INil Ru;:-- loan | 029 029 | 029
|
P Tatal 0.29 0.29 0.29
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‘Company has availed bill dimumtilng facility of sales invoiocs issusd to Mfs Ashok Leyland Limited from ICICI Bank Limited outstanding as at the year end amounting to Ra Nil (31 March 2024:
31.36 lace. 01 April 2023: Ra 150.40 lacs). The interost charyed by bank is 8.10 % p.a on the said facility. The facility is secured against the trade receivabio of the respoctive customer.

Company hag availed bill discounting facility of sales invuices issued to VE Coinmercial Veehisles Limited from HDFC Bank Limited outstanding as at the year end amounting to Rs Nil (31 March
2024: Rs Nil, 01 April 2023 Rs |,214.55 lacs). The imerest charged by bank is 8.45 % p.a on the said facility. The facility is secured against the trade receivable of the respective customer,

21 Onber current linkilities

Advances received from customers
Statulory dues payable

22 Current tux Liabilities (net)

Provision for incume tax (net of advance tax)

Annt
31 March 2025

5,095.00
348.82

As at
31 March 2028

20446
—C

{15 gore Juas Beew intensimiadly gt blank)

Azt Asat
31 March 2024 01 Agrd) 2023
2,733.96 291.06
2]5.99 149.13
I.949.58 440.18
As at As at
31 March 2024 01 April 2023
80.92 3021
§0.93 ) 30.21



NEOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No. U74899DL1992PTC050702)

N sto financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(AN amounts in Rs. lacs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

For the ycar ended  For the year ended

23 Revenue from operativns 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Revenue from contract with custumers

Sale of product 45,711.18 37,418.63
Sale of services 4.841.09 2,333.54
50.552.27 39,752.17
Other operating revenue 655.23 546.58
655.23 546.58
§1.207.50 40.298.75
Sale of product
= Sale of finished goods
" Autumotive lamps, signalling equipment and parts 36,649.81 35,466.85
Moulds, dies & fixtures 4,153.78 464.20
Others 1,114.92 1,009.61
- Sale of traded goods
Automotive lamps, signalling equipment and parts * 3,792.66 477.98
45.711.18 37.418.63
Sale of service .
Design and 1ool development charges 4,841.09 2333.54
4.841.09 2.333.54
Other vperuting revenue
Scrap sales 147.20 132.57
Gain on exchange fluctuation 133.34 32,58
Duty drawback, merchandise export and RODTEP incentive 306.33 299,01
Others 68.36 B242
655.23 546.58

* Includes Merchant Trade Transaction of Rs 3,660.88 lacs (31 March 2024: Nil)

Revenue from uperativas For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
-Domestic 26.950.54 25,812.07
~Exporis* 23.601.73 13,940.10
50.552.27 39.752.17

* Include sales to SEZ of Rs 0.81 lacs (31 March 2024: Rs 12.31 lacs)

Disclusure required by Ind AS 115

Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by major products and service lines above. Further, the revenue is disclosed in the
said note is net of Rs. 347.06 lacs (31 March 2024 Rs 278.12 lacs) representing discount to customers. The following table provides further
information as required by Ind AS 115.

For the year ended  For the year ended

Reconciliation of revenue from contract with customer 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Contracted price 50,899.33 40,030.29
Less: Trade discounts, cash discount, volume robates, ele. : 347.06 278.12
Revenue [rom contraet with cuslomer ) 50,552.27 39,752,117
Contract balances (Moulds, dies & fixtures) 31 Mﬁ-:tzozs 3 M::;:tzoz 4

Trade receivables 1,084.04 1,023.82
Contract assets 27134 117.16
Contract linbilities 5,025.13 2,029.59

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned from development of tools and secondary equipment as receipt of consideration is
conditional on successful completion and acceptance by the customer. Upon completion and acceptance by the customer, the amounts
recognised as contrac| assets are reclassified to trade receivables. The expected credit loss on contract assets is consiil;red vl w and hence
0o provision for credu 1oss. 15 rermrded in respect of cont: .ut BSSELs. Vs
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“For the year ended  For the year ended

Pithorinchie 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest income on term deposits and others 126.90 31.52
Provision/liability no longer required written back 5.24 11.68
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - 0.74
Unwinding of interest on financial assets 3.54 5.04
Gain on derecognition of right of use assets and lease liabilities on account

of termination and modification of leases 4,07 9.80
Net gain on fair valuation of investments carried at fair velue through profit
& loss 3175 0.10
171.51 58.88
i . . For the year ended  For the year ended
25 Cost of raw materials and components consumed 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Inventories at the beginning of the year 1.957.11 1,965.77
Add:- Purchases 24,275.71 21,382.50
Less:- Inventories at the end of the year 2,504.94 1,957.11
23.727.88 21,391.15
. For the year ended For the year ended
26 Purchuse vfstock in trade 31 March2025 31 March 2024
Purchase of traded poods 3,692.56 429.99
3,692.56 429.99
-Purchase of traded goods
-Automotive lamps, signalling equipment and parts * . 3,692.56 42999
3.692.56 429.99

* Includes Merchant Trade Transaction of Rs 3,578.06 lacs (31 March 2024: Nil)

27 Change in inventory of finished goods, work in progress and stock in For the yenr ended  For the year ended
trade 31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Inventories at the ead of the year
&) Work in progress 39990 352.57
b} Work in progress- dies & moulds* 676.71 438.44
¢) Finished goods 1,881.05 1,191.40
d} Finished Goods-dies & moulds . 169.66 -
€) Stock-in-trade (in respect of goods aequired for trading) 250.04 -
3,377.35 198242
Inventories at the beginning of the year
a) Work in progress 352.57 485.39
b) Work in progress- dies & moulds** 438.44 340,58
¢) Finished goods 1,191.40 1,423.11
198242 2,249.07
(1,394.93) 266.65

* Closing stock include servive slock of design and teol development charges of Rs 239,68 lacs (31 March 2024: Rs Nil)
** Opening stock include service stock of design and tool development charges of Rs Nil (01 April 2023: Rs 306.26 lacs)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)



22 Employece bencfits expenses

29

30

31

Salarics, wages and bonus

Contributions to provident fund and other funds
Gratuity expenses

Leave encashment

StafT welfare

Finance cost

Interest expense on borrowings
interest others

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Other borvowing costs

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Depreciation on property,plant and equipment (refer note 2)

Depreciation on right of use assets (refer note 3)
Amortization of intangible assets (refer note 4)

Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spare parts

Packing material consumed

Job work charges

Repairs & maintenance
Repair & maintenance- plant & machinery
Repair & maintenance- factory building
Repair and maintenance - others

Power and fuel

Freight, cartage & octroi

Design and lool development charges

Testing charges

Payment to auditors™

Rates, taxes and fees

Insurance

Rent**

Selling and distribution expenses

Travelling and conveyance

Contribution towards CSR***

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

Provision for bad and doubtful debis

Bad debts writlen off

Other office expense

* Auditors remuneration-refer note 36

** Represents lease rentals for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

**% Contribution towards CSR- refer note 46
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For the year ended
31 March 2025

For the year ended
31 March 2024

6,855.08 5,785.78
142.38 152,02
73.59 56.94
78.73 15.97
134.91 95.52
7.284.69 6.106.22

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
503.07 637.59
2.71 2.89
42.87 37.24
202.88 249,35
751.53 927.07
" For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

1,619.91 1,299.31

193.89 209.95

25.39 39.05

1,839.1% 1,548.30

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2025

31 Mareh 2024

398.51
1,137.31
108.27

165.61
39.34
33.81

787.47
92.98

2,298.50

191.8%
14.75
15.05
79.38

204.45

85247

565.20
50.20

2.51
40.53
39.73

1,133.43
8,251.42

321.48
964.26
86.62

107.87
47.03
29.63

693.77
72.72

1,445.52

359.08
14.75
21.83
66,58
19.84

901.3%

475.95
5748
83.35

0.06
1,287.58
7,056.78




NEOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No. U743990L1992PTCO50702)
Notea to finencial stutewents for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amounts o Rs, Iocy, cxcept thore dato and per sharo dptn, and unlom olberw ise stated)

32 Cuniigesd Liullities
Cluiem uyalne the Cumipusy net sckees kidged w deist
14l

Particulsry As ol 31 March 3025 Anul 31 March 2026 e 01 Aguil 3013

Oumanding bonk ymmntaes* FLIE ] 2123 23544
Linbility in respect of vendor ducoumung scheme from bank 4254 D 7.1
Ouistanding Tas dedusied ot Source (TDS) Demand** 1451 1441 1%
Chim ngainst the Company by titiated by wermisated omployoos®®® %97 4.9 2083

%Thy Company bas provided bonk guaraatees as m 31 March 20295, 31 Morch 2024 and s at ¢1 Apcil 2023 for the pmounly mentoncd above. in tho ordinary course of businces, Theso teah guortmecs ue
contingent is noturo ond wil be cneashed only in the event of default.

** I the opinion of tbe manigrm el e ousiaoding TINS demand is not po able pencuny reconcilistivas of crodi for corwin challany nol beon givan by the depasimant sad cthor procedurs] manar. The
Company s in ihe procesy of getting the same rectficd.

#5% Diuring the cartier ycars the Company had reselod neticen rom tno empleyoa for ro-inmaemend wid Gull back wages wilk slTect Iom reapective daie of Homination alogwiik imuily of service and
atbor conscquentinl bencliu, Tho clum hos becn dumussed by the Industnnl Tnbusal-Com-Laboue Coan, Gurugran, Howexer. the said orers hove boen clmllangod by the workman 1n 1he Honqurshle
Punjab and Horyaea High Court The procoediags aro coalinuing. Ln the opinion of 1o manapement the Company bas a good case s rospoct of the clam by the employ 00s. Hoaco, 0o prosivioa in coniderod
DECCEEATY BERIAN Lhe FAm.

(B} The Compans wos allotied Plot no 3, Scc=4B, [.E. Bahadurgarh by, HSHDC on 82 Junc 2004 om whaeh i compoay had consirucicd its faciory. The Company kas received & oouice dated 31 May 2019
from HSIDC for pay meat of enbuncod com Dmounting 10 Ry 147192 Incs for Blot 0o 30 Sec=iB, |.E. Buhedurgarh, This nmownl vas poyoble i lump su witkln G0 days of issanco of demiand aotico
without any inicrent, Allematively. this ameunt could alwo be paid in 10 oqual holf yearly instalments with inierest ‘¢, 12% p.a which will increase the toial smount to Ra 2.398.04 lecu. The Compuy in

with ather bers of 1ko indlusirial ares i Jitigasing the moller. The Honourabie Punjab and Hanwon High Court has grnied o nay in the matter and the procoedings tre continuing, In the
opinion of hc manogemeut tho smawnt is Wially wasscenainable and in subjoct o ihe outcome ol procoedings.

{C) The Hon'ble Supramo Court of India. hrough » ruling tn Fobruxty 2019, prosided intcrprotalion on the composentx of Salury on which the Company nnd 1t employacs ara o contribute towands
Provident Fusd under the Emplosee’s Prosadest Fund AcL There 4o RUMCFouN inlerpretating iseus relaling 1o tha Suprome Count (SC) judgemen, Bascd on the currcal evalustion. the Company beliosal it
is not probablo Lhot coriain componeals of Salory pud by the Compam will be vubjeet to contribaiion towards Provident Fund pussusat 1o U Suprame Court onder. The Company will conlinue 1o modike
and exaluatc its pesition based on future ovenis and desclopments.

33 Cupliwl anid oiber cumeshisenis

il Asut 3 March 3025 Ani 31 March 2024 Anmi Ul Aorll 023
i 29,

nmou of ining v be caesuted oa capital acevwn and Aot prosided, nel of advasces® 1. HR.13 53871
iby i i for building and plnot & equipmenl.
1/ 028 Asat 31 Murch i ane U1 402028
ining 1o be cd o, purch 2ol provided. (net of ndvancen)* ¢ 139 +H.01
Duly saved against import of capiun) goods wader EPCO scheme (againat export obligation) (s note bolow)**® 94833 06634 85128
“*Purchosg iy i for moulkds & dics for curlomers,
220Thq gaport oblgation for duly saved ogainsl impest of cupual poods uoder EPCG schama hos beoa fulfilled. H e ivsen Tor H from the salutory mutkonlion aro
pending.
f“- {Thes ysur fus feon iiemtascds it Bty
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34  Tasespense

(u) Tux expenae

Currtnitur |

Curont tax on profit for the yoar

Shin |ewe0i s ewrend fox of 47 1 o riods
Tt €urret tax caj-nme

Deforred taa i

(lacronsa JAdecronse in dalerntd los mseels
Increwsa 151 sm: in deferred tax linbilities
Totud deferned tax ea v 1=+ M

Tux s &1 =0 |urrend (n o deferred 1o

(b Incume (ax bige] In pther comp Inguesy| i)
et Ins
Romawsuromant of dofined benelit plany

Tax e -cose | benefity
Remeacurement el dellaed Denefit jimns et uf lu

(s) Reconcillution of ellective tua rute
2l beore
Enacied tax rafo in ludia

i} Defosred taa lisbality Aansate)
ii) Tax related to prior poriods
i’ Othora

Invome tax % ne

Effceiive tux rule

35 Opurading lease trumuctions

A, Lense ap lennce

The has inken | p wihor 1labic op

Tutal of future minimum kiuse puy mens wnider numgancellsble uperating Icase fur fullw ing periou:

Not lsser than one ycar

Loy thas oo 3 eor and not Iater dhan Mve years
Later thas five ycocs

Tutal

Imfurmaiien ubued leuses fnr which the Compuny b # lesuce

Leuso lubtitles

Balance mn a1 the beginamy of the y ear
Add: Additions dunoy the yeor

Less: Dolotion during the yeor

Add: Finanoc cost

Lesa; Re. sment including Mnance cost)
HBalunce pr i the ead ol the - ear

Furihe yewrowded  For the your ended
51 blurch 2028 31 Maurch 2024
e LR
L] LB Y]
191307 TeRA3
L7 10,08y
111.57 BS.4d
e F-%
1.944.27 72681
Fur' the yenr ended For the year ended
31 Murch 228 31 Murch 2024
{§7.16) (.87
2.69 L3
[64ATI 1137
Furibe yearended  For 1be yeur eaded
Ji Murch ZUZ5 JL Murch 2024
7.226.68 163148
25.17% 25.17%
141896 6L
o b X
[ 3 wan
153,73 3R77
F4.27 T20.03
26.0% W%
lense pasmoats in respect of auats (nhea cn oparatiag 16250 are as follow s~
Furtbe yearemaled  For tise yeur ended
31 Murch 212% 31 March 2024
Annl Aral Asal
31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024 ol 112023
51730 32288 33643
25981 3 129.82
12852 o34 -
42,87 I nB
216,56 226,70 174.83
414 AT Ry




Argl Al Asnl

Leuse {iabilitles in o pusitian aa ut repurting dules 21 March 2028 31 March 2024 o4 Acril 2023
Current - 5] 14741 T ]
‘Now-curvent — — B 309.57 16947
Amousin recopnisci In Strtemess of Profit sod Luss e B
Tmereet on fense Liabilihics 247 TN

prociation expenso linkl iation expense on ROU et crepied oa sceurily depomil s per IND AS 116} 19349 w998
Baage 1110 rolati | 1o shori-ierm leases ond leases of low-ralue ansets 2AHAS 19494
Tod = == = = _HLa 6703

_ Vil theyesrended  For the yenr ended

Amuust recviised b siatement of eush fluws 31 March 2028 31 March 2024
The total cash outllow [or Icases - ukorosl [F1 T A 3724
‘The total crsh outllow for leapss = - ineiii 1709 18946
Tiral 21696 -, ]

36 Auditor'y restune rutlon

For tbc yearended  For the yonr euded

Particulars 31 Murch U2 3 March 224
For slatutery wudd v
Stalutory audit 1150 1250
For Tax audnl s 050
For Certificotions amd other maliors n.sn 50
1350 [EE ]
il Fur cont aadH ey . 1.3 1.1%
T R 14.78 1475

37 Trade recrivable upcing

Ageing Schedule
A w31 Murch 2028
Tor 1= riodn from due dute of i mend
S Nod ilse Lo than 6 wuh 6 mumtha=l - cur \-2oeam 33 an More fhum 1 1L
Undli d tredo reccivabl idored good 27134 Tobblol) 154337 aun e 483,38
D+ Innde receinables credit im:-ircd - - - = L 120
Townl T — R — — — =
Lesaz= Allow ance for ca; -« od credit ke
o1 (rule receinable
As il 31 Murch 2024 — e A— .
Pariiculury Outatandl-: Tor fullow in, (= rvds frem due dete of |- mem . N
- i nhilled recviviblen Nt i Ls-nihamé menih 6 momhe-| : eur 1= gars 2-5 i imin bece than | 5 is
Undisputed Iradc reseisobl idercd good e 675118 L5 2172 480,14 .o -
D ;uted trude recelvables erodit im - ired - 1164 83.35 4944
SuEES = .
Lawsi= Allpn ance for ¢, - cied credi ke
Net trade receisubie
i
/
f T !
| ¥, N
ey {1
7V \ A (A7
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A - 01 Ayl 2023

35 iaalbes Fur folbom e 1o vimis Fioais e b o 5o ment

FPurtlcuinn Unbili coer b Nl due L hsn 6 munth G monthe-1- eur 12..n 23 am “Ucir than3cear  Tokd
Undispuied wada recaiyablcs-conmdcred good 3854 7,520 06 97152 3l.m? 167,33 - - 9,684.84
Uadisputod trada roooisabler-which have mgnificant
8 e 10.67 . - . 10.67
introass i cradit rish
D il Irofie reeelvables ercdil img jired Wl 5643 5714
Tutal 5 78166
Leswi= Allnwunce for exscecied credii lomn = 167n)
Net trade reschvable = Ly
3 Trade payubles nyring
Agelay Schedule
As at 31 Murch 2023 . —ii
fur Follon bij; = rivads frus due date of |- mest

Ll Not due Laa flim U'yvar 2.n 23, can Mure thas 3 --.r Tuw
Droas of micro and small entecpriscs A0 0,7 - - 146,66
Othrers o JHLIR 555.09 +1.63 3018 BE. 14 4 165.14
Total traile . ubles T Xy 1163 .8 w.id i
As ot 31 B o 2024 B —_—e

Qufd s farEiios Ing po clos Frum due dude of ;i oes —
L] ol Leas than { - cur 1-2 - emrs 2-3: camn Mo fhan 3 coar Tulwl
Ducs of micro and smaoll easorpriscs 3.9 - . - - 43439
Othery GZ.90 -0 wn ['e un L3989
Bk Erutie jis il 611738 TRuT 193 1T 1L72 R
Anut Al 2023

Outstanding for [yliyw ey perisds Trum due ilute of pay ment
Lo Nut (e Lewi than | - ¢ar 11  vurs 23 ears ) Murcthend jiar Tudul
Ducs of micro aod small emerpriscs - - - E = -
Cthers 520047 (2] 23l s G618
Tomid Attt pwraliles — - e 47 9.4 1y 2150 [Py
3 Emeniogy pershare

Fur the year ended Fur ibe year eaded
LA 31 March 2028 31 March 2024
Nel profit aller inx altnbutabk 10 0quily sharcholden 3,282.41 1.9u8.43
Weightod svarage aumber of oquly Eharcs uianding during the yoar 11T 8 157974
Potomisl equity shares upon sion ol C dsory C ible Non<C ive Prefe Shares* 176,470 176470
Woightad avarage oquity shares for tha purposes of calculming diluiing camings per share 1356218 1336218
Basia oarnings per sharc (In Ra.) HTH 16151
Diluted earnings per share (la Ra.} S0 1458
Pheo value por coulity gharg {lo Re) L] 100
* Tho Compulsory Comcrtible Neu-Cumulotise Prelereace Sharcs convenible inlo equity shares ln kil ratia.
W Ginvernoses! prunt
Fur the yeur exed For ik year ended

bty 31 March 2128 31 Murch 304
Diii- dmwback, merchaadine ca - and RQDTEP Lacemtive 306.33 .01
Tutul Hit33 29901




4 Reluted party fransaction
Name of relaied parties, imnsactioas and balaoces at reporting dats nre as follows

Name of relwted parthen

(i) Diresters and Key Munagerisl perwns (KMP)

i min = Manwgin, Do ——
Wilbelm Prane Xaver Stoger Nominge Dirggtor of ZKW Group Grmbh {W.o.f h Augum 03)
Olivor Schubern g Nominee Di o[ ZRW W 7ih 2

Valshall Jaln i == =
Aran Kianar Jain® S [TTNTE 2025); Appaoinicd sy Chicl

itii1icah Kuear Tin i *

[ Enth haveicy 26% voliviy rlyni b the i
1) Entity gynjrolked

ZKW Lichl. sleme Gbh Ent* controlled 1 =) having .y rificant influcnee

(Pel Relathvy o by oamiiy il = raonael

Laic Sunder Dosi Juin

¥ iy It cartlen contrlled 1 50 kg mene = rionnel

Nookut Global Privete Lumited

Reloiww of Man ;in, Direclor. M. i.7

i Conirolled i+ ke: masi; mem .« rsonmel

Noelilo Industrics il bn ho: mana,. mem - rsonne] —
Neometal Electrical and ladwsiries Privato Limiied Ent'is Coniralled 1 &. maona;: mem - ronnel
Laks Autom = Eat's Coarollod v relative of iy mana;. mem = oo |

Raju's Racee infinies Privaic Limited (Formerhy known os
Rance Poi: mera Privaic Limild)
B.K. Indumricy

shised j1erty

Iastsc Lndunr) cuhomges salan Trum Post-em; . - ment beneiit ; Lon of the Com,-
(T¥ex gy by oei ansvmiorsdh kgt oy
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‘Trunssetions duriog the yenr

Fror T SEWE rmlbeil

Tie Gr year i d

Facticulurs Ruture of related party 31 Mareh 328 31 Mareh 04

{A) Remunoratlun peld

Rajosh Jain Manayusy dircctor 2la.00 18

Rajesh Sanl Chief exccutis ¢ officer 1LMM.U2 9.

Arun Kumar Jain Company Secreiary 327 33.66
Towal LT 121276

{B) Bent puld

Vaishall Jin Director 0,27 13,40

Rajesh Jain Masoging Dicoctor 50.00 2.0

Noplity Indumrics Entity controliod by KMP 14313 w37

Sundor Dovi Juin Ralative of KMP - 9.2
Tetal FIER 12027

(C) Deslpn unal tuul develupatont charges pald

Neokrol Globai Private Lamilked Eatny controllod by KMP 203310 Lu33d2

Adrance Englnocring Curporalion Eatity controlicd by rclalive of KMP 2.4 -
Total 32401 183042

(D) Bule of priwlusi

Neokraft Global Privas Limised Satrly controlled by KMP u.3% 47
Totud 055 LS

{E) Purchese of property, plust and oguipaent

BK. lndusirios Eniny controlicd by relatise of KMP 71.50 18787

ZKW Lichigysiome Gmbh Eanty conralled m"“"' tigailican . i
Total 15307 15707

{F) Sule of pruperiy, plint sad equipment

Neokrafl Global Privake Lumiled Eauty conlrolled by KMP .63
Tutal 5168

(G} Purchuse of guody

Ashak Automats Entity controlled by relatne of KMP AN 2143

Nookralt Global Provase Limied Enwy controlied by KMP .93 2936

Raja’s Ranoe Infinitan Privato Lumued (Formerls knowa oa Ranca Foly mars Prisate Lumited) Enmuy contralicd by relative of KMP - 025
Taul .16 a1

(H) Aslvance for prigeriy, plund snd equipment ) .

ZKW Lichinyslene Gmbh Entity coatrolled by porty haag ignificass . 8157

influcace

Tutnl - 38T

D Unaccured luan ghven

Rajerh Soni Cheef uzocutive officer 1IN 46843
Tatnl 1394 46443

W) Ui Toms {machude intercst ta lumn reteived)

Rajesh Soni Chiel caccutiva allicor LMY.13 UG5
Total 1.7 Y654

(K} Lotercat ua unsceurcd i

Rajesh Soni Chicf exccutive officer 29.66 1303
Totsl .66 1303

{L) Exhlbltlun expenncx

Adlignce Expo Entisy comurolied by relmive of KMP 119,40 4330
Tatal 11908 e

oy,

. _Rmfwx\l“ﬁ;ily

W/



Balaoces vutstanding af the el of the year

Purtlewlury

Puyable (v eiployeed (Uther finsncisl Bubitities-varnens)
Rajesh Jain

Rajesh Soni

Amo Koreor Jom

Trude payulics
Raja's Rance lnfinitcs Frvate Luniied tFormerly Mnown ay Ranea Polymors Privats Limited)

Umetured Juun (Burrus bngs (current, Nounclal luhilites)
Rajesh Jaw

Security Ueposd (Othey Nlauncial macts-noa rirresd)
Rajosh Jain

Voishali Juin

Neolie ladussics

Lalo Sundor Devi Jain

Security depusll (Other nuncinl magtu-current)
Noolin ldusisies

Advances uther than cugital advances (Qilier cursent asety)
Nookraft Globol Privete Lumied
Ashok Amomals

Capiful advunie {O1ber nun-currcat aaseis)

Nulure of retsfed yii 1

Asut 31 Mareh 2005 Anut 5| March 2024 Anol 01 Apre

Monzging Dirccior
Chiel excemlve oliger
Company Secretary
Tail

Emny comerolicd by rolmiive of KMP
Total

Managmg Direclor
Totl

Managing Director
Duregior
Entity coatrolled by KMP
Relmive of KMP
Tuisl

Extily controliod bx KMP
Tutal
Eatity conuolied by KMP

Emtity controlled by relative of KMP
Tulal

Bub Indumtrion Entily contrulled by relasive of KMP
ZRW Lichusysiomoe Gmbh Enirty having significant inllucnce
Tutl
Loan ju #mpluyees (Losns-currem)
Rajesh Soni Chiof exceutive officer
Tuis
TPerronal psiranice
Mr. Rajesh Jain (Key management persunnsl) ond Mm. Voishali Jamn (Key I have Manag
given porsonal gunzanice on beholf of the Cempany m favour of the HDPC Bank Lamited for (i bomow ings
oblainod by the Compam.
Prugerly given an securily and corpurale guaruotee
N b Electrical and lod Privaie Limited has pledyed 1 property {Fomm ne 4. 3rd Avonue, Bandh Entsty Comrolled by KMP
Rood, Chauarpor, New Delii-110074) wik HUFC Bank Lamiled for the wisecurod loon obuined by the
Company. Farther, Neomeial Eiceincal and Ludestrios Private Limited has givant A corporaic yuarsiice oo
boball of the Company in Dnvewr of the HORC Bank Limited For the unsecurad loan obuined By the
Cosipany .
Noicz- The reladed party ir ure in 16 uriinary course ol businens en arm's leayil baxds.
f {Thur shoay hus b owiontionaly defe bhawky
’ i A W
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i3 47.48
116 193
564 .73
0.2y 0329
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NEOLITE ZKW LICHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED {CIN Ne. UTH899DLIN2PTCOSOTOZ)
Notes to financlal statements for the year ended 31 March 2028
LAl aoowig La R, lacs. excopt shure data sl por shar dota. sxd wilces otherw e sakeds

42 Otber meygnent repuriing

) Ientificatiua uf Segmesia

Frimpry-Baiociy sepmenis:-

Tie Counpuny hos iiewlilicd o Busiucss e and s segmont comprialng hownsligliing on The basls of 1hs M of products, the riah md
eiwm prolile of individu binioees wad e intcrml Busuiss mpording &y ricaw. Tho prociwets imciucod ko cachi of he weporiod busimses e A oy Milogs -

W i g of ivo lightlng & spmiling cruprocrl, piastic inoulded parts, mouds, dies, fecture (including dosiga & devolopincnl elmrges) mad sheet icial

or four wixclor spplwiions and othors parts for masmotise. Further. antomoiivg scgmenl Ius boen bifurconed Lo 1wo sub-sepmonts mualy Limpy, Siganiling
Bquipmen and Fany' zd 'Moukds, Dies, Fidures Dostyn & dorolopracu* oa 110 bass of resh. retwrs and nuiwe of product.
(N Othors Scymond conwprisig of Tamcligblivg » Le. nwicor pid ouldoor lighting.
i) Reveeue and expeiscs hove boen iontilied 1o & SCgHIEm o tha basis of relbtiuship o opemling acl
28 4 nhole and zet alipcable to 0 sepmonl on rusoaibic bt e bern disclosod as "unillocaed”
i + Seymont msets an sepnon Imbilnss represent nsacts i Eabilaa in Rapecisa scgnents. Iocome tx rekriod asscts liobilitics. bomow ings, deformod tax Jimbilitics (net) nnd
other el and Hubililies thet cia hot be allocuked o 8 scyme OR trasis bon e b 5"l ",

vitics of the sagmeut. Revert aixd cxpeises which relaics 1 aierpisce

s il s Baaynne brpreents
| Furthe -cur cnded J) March 2028 . Murch 204 |
AUTOMOTIVE SEGMENT AUTOMOTIVE SEGMENT T |
Lumps, Musids, Dizs, OTHERS Lamps, Muulds, Bles,
Signallioy | Fixtures Unchudisg SEGMENT Teinl Siymalling Flatmred SEGMENT Tolal
Bipmentssd|  Deignd Equipmest anl | {inchudbag Deslgn
Parn derelopment) Puts | & develspment)
[ = smeat Reveaue 1 —— == — — — | T— ¢
Extern sulcs | w2 [T LIMS2 5227 ISR P N T T WL
| Oaher 0y ncome | 63150 15.73] k14 [LF $2601 692, A Moes
nicrea. - o revemie — T i - - - - = - =
Tuind — - ‘ FTREIT 90 neE J1006] 81207 | dedmd 221488 101328 diinns
-Reaulty | |
e M rsUS Eumi - befors ukered & 1ax) 1 wors | T T YTy MoE| 20743 1R
Unilocuied [ rus ex 55 i [ [ | o
U llocaied bicoms | | — it MW
iPperuting | rofit H | | 11 sika 8y
Finnnce svst | i 21t
[Profit before tax — — =1 .18
Taxwmr - i 1] | T
Pryfti after tux | | 1 1 B | LY
Otber cum;i rebeive Income 1<) | el of tnnd | B )
Torl cump:  bemalve butie | | | i | Lok
1 1 I
Dey reclation & saurthaation 1 138901 | e [ ] S48 TN R AT R 1| [EXT] CXTHI I X
Dey & an P dacuted of | |
e} | . - mal - - EN A
(i st A ivew smtrntmrall bt Moty

\J}# JJ{E}&:}UL/



At 31 March 2028 Anxt 31 Muarch 2024 1 As ot 01 5 il 023 ]
| AUTOMOTIVE SEGMENT | _AUTOMOTIVE SEGMENT | AUTOMOTIVE BEGMENT |
Muulls, Dles,
Lamps, Muuhds, Diex, OTHERS Lampn, Waulds, Dics, DTHERS Lamps, I1 OTHERS
Sinsalllo | Flatvws Gihullay|  gpmENT Total Signaliing Fuwres ppoyper| Tl | Sholles | g | pEoment|  Ted
Equipment axd Design & Equipment and | tinckuliag, Dol Equl, Iy
Parin | develapment) | | Parts & developmest) | | | aad Parts P
| 3G EETT2 GHY.60 0.703.49 | 2037204 | FETEX BN 14.‘m|.|u1: 1335600 FYTEY Y
a0 1 IR i [
Tulel Asaytu 1 | AT Mo
i H9.09 S was| 2] sziaes IR 079} | 763s|  desg0]  6iles|  zadz] 79%040
Unnllocwied 0012111 |iwblilics 1 | ! [{EL R TR i IR U L 12114487
Totul Linbilitics = BT 111665 | | [T
© Ml oeiei4il | Totol asscrs numis tokal Lisbilities) i ¥ L] 127137 e T4
Cuiiltal 1515 re dwri; Wb <-ur | et ol CWIF| 4.599.22 . i | Iz | 3 14269 1 JMLE9 | 2983 - | iwemi
11 &
The analysis of' 15 bosed on geogruphucal | I tbe
The folkowing o the disinbtion of Cotpim 8 tsonu by geogmplecnl markel, mgirdicss of wher e poods wer produced
IS Countrios:= Conumom cull of lidepondeuwl States vie Rissin, Usbehistun cic,
Fur ihe yeur eaded  Fur (he year cnded
] from Eaternal €2 31 March 038 31 Murch 204
Indln 1AW 26,314, 10
Ching® 14.57 nn
CIS (G s of Sinks) 2181118 11.324.12
Oulier counrics = Lyow.38 1.572.09
Tutul L0758 W 78
* Tho eapor of tho poods wire delrared disccth 1o the end pser siymied in Usbebmatan (Cy Itk of
Bimies couniny ) on the duseuon of the customer
Kia Lo |
il o ot Trwde Rucelvablen 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 3823
Indin 001481 4.0k3,08 3,629,350
China 36463 s 400 29
CIS (C ih of Staics} LO5LW 24977 202282
Orlicr counirics — o6l.4l .4 T, 22
Tutul 1T 125,58 ]

1. The Corapumy by coinmon asscis for prodiciog yoods [or deamsie nackal aid os dicus market, Hener, scparmie figurcs for fincd asscls
have not be furmeshod.

{C) Mujur cusiumery
Revanue from opendwom inclisdes Rs 17,406.95 lacs (31 harch 2024. Rs 189469 Licw} anvng, fom product snpplcd’ services pro idod
W o cestoner (1 March 2024 three cusloner) 1% h

{1700 e S Reem seeaieailh Ji7 Mok




NEQLITE ZKW LIGITINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN Neo. U74899DL1992FTC050702)
Notes to financlul stutementy for the year ended 31 March 2028
{All amounts us Rs. lacs, except shace data and per share data, and unless otherwise staled)

43 Post employment benefits

Defind contribution pluns
Contribution to defined contribution /|~ rec-.: ized as "Emy |- -+ Benefits Exvises’ for the -/ are as under:

Particulars

Employer’s contribution 1o providant fund
Employer’s contribution to ESI fund

Employer's contribution lo ensployees welfare fund
Em/ 1" contribution Lo patieatl |~ nswon fund
Total

() Gratuity

For the ysur ended  For the year ended
31 March 2028 31 Murch 2024

121.25 12235
1472 14,68
4.04 390
237 11.09
14238 15202

The Company has defined benefit gratwity plan for its employees, which requires contributions to be made fo e suparstely adminstered furl. 1t ix governed by the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972, Under the Act, employee who has compleled five years of sérvice is entitied to specific benefit. The lovel of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and
solary at retirement age. The scheme is funded with HDFC Life Insurance Comparty Limited in the form of qualifying insurance pulicy. The funding ratio as at year ended 31 March 2025

is 9.40% (31 March 2024: 11.80% and 31 March 2023: 11.70%).

(b) Eorned leove

The Pregers value ubligation of Leave Encashment is determined based on actuarial valuation using projécted unit credit method.

Disclosure reyuirement us per Indian Accounting Standurd on Employse Benefits-Ind AS (19)-As per actuarial vaiuation as on 3) March 2025 are as lollows:

i_) Ex:nses i riwgnised lo the Statement of Profit and Loss under the bead emi}:: <« benefifn 1) enne

:mount reco=nined in OCI 134.84

¥ s S
A A\ /

\J

P
-

LY

Gratulr; Leave encashment
Particulurs For the year ended  For the year ended  For the yeur ended  For the year ended
31 March 2028 31 Maorch 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Current service cost 51.32 35.94 42,00 29.01
Interest vost 22.27 21.00 535 M
Actarial gain/luss . 3120 119.031
Ex;-nses reco, nised in Statement of Profit & Losa 73.59 56,94 78.73 15,97
Amuount tu be reca nised in the Balance Sheet
Gratuit: Leave encash
Particulor Axut Anat Asat Asat Asat Asnt
31 Muarch 2025 31 March 2024 01 Ajril 2023 31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Liability at the end of the year * 501.80 366.22 13593 137.02 90.02 8597
Fair value of | ‘an assets at the end of the | 47.06 43.36 3921 . - -
Amuunt tv be roco; nised in Balance Sheet 454.74 322,86 296.72 137.02 90.02 85.97
Current 111.13 .18 72,84 18.66 1159 2385
Non-current 343.61 24568 223.88 11836 7844 6212
Reconciliation of benefit oblij ntlon
Grutuit. Leuve encushment
Particulurs For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended  For the year ended
31 Murch 2023 31 March 2024 31 Murch 2025 31 Murch 2024
Liability at the beyiwnning of the year 366 33593 w002 8597
Loterest cost 2540 23.94 535 5.99
Current service cost 5032 3594 42.09 29.01
Benefits paid (28.87) (32.67) {31.73) (11.92)
Remeasurement {:::in) / loss 8794 108 31.2% 119.03
Linbilit: at the end of the - ear 501.80 366.22 137.02 90.02
Reconclliution of fuiv value of | ilan aasets: -
Gratuits Leave hment
Particulnra “For the yaar ended  For the year saded  For the yeor ended  For the year ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 Murch 2028 31 Murch 2024
Fair value of plan assets at the beginuny ofihe year 43.36 3921 = -
Interest mcone 31 2.94 - -
Employers contribution - - - -
Benefits paid - - - -
Retumn on plan essels-yain Aloss) 0.58 1.21 - -
Fair value of ; lan assets at the end of the s car 47,06 4336 - -
Amount recogalsed o stutement of other comprehensive income (OCIH)
Grutull Leave encushment
Particulvrs For the year ended  For the year endedl  For the yeur ended  For the year ended
31 Murch 2028 51 Murch 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening amount recognised in UCT 47.68 45.81 - -
Remeasurement for the year - Obliyationiyainy/ loss 8774 3.08 - -
Remeasurement for the year = plan assetsiyain)/ loss (0.58) (121 - -
Net incroased i OCI 87.16 1.87 - -
Total « /i nsurements .1 | credit| fur the vear reco; nised in OCI 134.84 47.68 - -
47.68 - -



Princijul actuarial ossumiions

Gratults Leuve encashment

Particulurs Forthe year ended For the yearended  For the year enied  For the year ended

= 31 Murch 2025 3 March 2024 3£ Murch 2028 31 March2024
Dicount rale u 6.14% 122% 6.74% 122%
Expected return on assets 7.22% 749% 0.00% 0.00%
Salary esculotion 6.00% 3.00% 6.00% 3.00%
Attrilivg rate 10.00% 6.00% 10.00% 6.00%
Retirement age 60.00 60.00 60.00 60.00

{a) The discount rate o based on the prevailing market yiclds of Lndian Governroent securities as et the balance sheet date for the estimated tems of the obligatioas

{b) Salary escalation rale: The estimates of future salary increases (Excluding Dwectors) considered in actuarial valuation, take into the accaunt the inflation, seniority.,
promotion and other relovant factors,

(¢ Expected return on rssets 18 expected roturn on plan assets over the accountung period, based on an assumed rate of return.

{d) Attrition rate is employee turnover rate based on the Company™s past and expected employee tumover.

(e} Diaclosure relaled to indication of effect of the defined benefit plan on the entity’s future cash flows:

Ex;eeted benefit . meats | discounted values/; resont voluei:

Gratults Leave cucashment
Five year puyouts For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended  For the year ended
— 31 March 2023 31 Murch 2024 31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024
Year (1} 41.27 23.67 12.67 6.00
Year (11} 4328 _.1 10.38 175
Year (I 20.86 29.59 879 6.07
Year (IV) 38.2 24.59 9.82 488
Year (V) 22.54 26.89 6,80 6.13
Next five year payouta (6-10 years) 154.50 112.20 4119 24.82

{f) Weighted aversge duration of defmed benelit obligation for gratuty and earned leave : 9,84 yoars (31 March 2024: 10.38 years, 01 April 2023: 10.43 years)

{1z} Seasitivity Analysis

Sergitivity analysis melicntes the influence of a reasonable change in principal assumptions, while keeping other things constant, on the cutcoms of the present vahue of
Defined Benefit Obligation. In reality, the plan is subject to multiple externnl experience itema which may move the Defined Benefit Obligation in similar or opposite
directions, while the Plan's sensitivity Lo such changes can vary over time.

A juantitstive scasltivit. onai. sis for significant assumtion is a1 shown below:
Gratuit.
1% Incrense 1% Increase 1% Incrense 1% Decrease 1% Decrense 1% Decrease
A, Effect of 1% Change in the assumed dlscount rute Asat Asat As at Asat As at Anat
31 March2025 31 Murch 2024 01 Ayl 2023 31 March 2025 3 March 2024 0 April 2023
Defined benefit obliyation 468,30 341.52 313.36 539.63 394,08 361.44
1% Increase 1% Increase 1% Incrense 1% Decreave 1% Decreass 1% Decrease
?..‘fl'fut of 1% Change in the assumed salary oscalution — Asat Asat et Anat Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 Aqrll 2023 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 0 A;iril 2023
Drefined banefit obligation 535.65 n 36032 471.23 34227 3.6l
1% Incrense 1% Increase 1% Incremse 1% Decrense 1% Docresse 1% Decreuse
C. Effect of 1% Chunge in the assuned Attrition rate As ot Asut Azat As ut Asat As at
- 3 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 Aril 2023 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 Apiril 2023
Defined benefia obligation 501,59 78l 342.56 502.03 35894 328.60
W% 1 10% lncrease 10% Increase
D, Effect of 10% increuse In the mortulity rate . Anut Asat Asat
31 March 2025 31 March2024 01 Airil 2023
Defined benefit vbligation 501.81 366.50 A36.21
Mortalii: - Indion Assured Lives Mortallt: (2012-14, Uitimute
Are Mortalirs rate
20 0.000924
30 . 0000977
35 0,001202
Leave b t
1% Increase 1% Incresss 1% Increase  |% Decremse 1% Decrenss 1% D
A, Effect of 1% Change in the assumed discount rate Asnmt Asat Asat Asat Asnt Anat
31 Murch 2028 31 March 2024 01 Aj;ril 2023 31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024 01 A;rll 2023
Defined benefit obligation 126.41 83.09 80.28 149,18 9197 9152
. 1% Incroase 1% Incrense 1% Ingrease 1% Decreuse 1% Decrease 1% Decreass
:!u:ﬁ'ecl of 1% Chungo in the nssumes! salury esculution —— Asat Anat Aat Asat Anal Asat
- 31 Morch 2025 31 March 2024 01 A;ril 2023 31 March 2025 3 March 2024 41 April 2023
Defined banefit abligation 148.59 9189 52.46 126.75 83.07 80,26
1% Increase 1% Increase 1% Increase 1% Decrense 1% Devrease 1% Dacreass
C. Effect of 1% Chuoge in the assumed Attrition rate Asnt As at Asnl As at A at As at
31 March 2028 31 March 2024 01 Ayril 2023 31 March 2028 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Defued benefit obligation o 137.05 2,35 88.14 130.594 87.44 8157
o - 10% Increane  10% Incrense 10% Incrense
D. Effect uf 10°) ncrease In the mortality rats Asat Asat Anat
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Defined bene /i 137.02 90.13 86.07

ki \U\LBN""‘“ .
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44 Falr value messurements

Fair value bhlerarchy

Funancial assets and financial liabilittes are measured at far value in the financial statements and are grouped mio theee levels of & fuir value hierarchy. The three levels ace dafined based
on the observability of sygnificant inputs to the measurements, a3 follows:

Level Iz Quuted price (unadyusted) in active narkets for financinl mstrunents.

Level 21 Directly (1.e. as prces) or miiectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable markel inputs, other than Level | inpuls; and

Level 3: nputs which are not based on observable market data (unabsorvable inputs). The wputs factors considered are Estnmated cash flows and other assumptiony.

Set aut below 13 the comparison by class of the carryng wnounts and Fair value of the Company's financial instruments

Fair value of instruments measured nt amortised cost for which fair value 1s disclosed in as follows, these fair values are calculsted uslng Level 3 in uts:

Particulurs

Floancial assets

Security deposits

Loan to employees

Trode reveivables

Interest income accrued v depusits
Export incentive receivabies

Bank balances other than cash and cesh equivalents
Other advances

Margits monay deposit with original maturity of more than
01t year

Cash and cash .+ uivolents

Total finunglul assets

Finsncial Gabilitics

Tmde secunity deposits

Lease liabilities

Interest accrue and oot due on borrowings
Interest accrue and due on borrowinus
Burrowings

Crediturs for capital expenditures

Traule payables

Payable to employees

Linbilities for ex|cises

Totol financinl linbilitivs

* The carying value of current financial asssts and current financial liatulities (cash and cash equivalents, other bank belances, trade receivables, trade

assets and linbililies) are recoynised to be ot fair vaiue due to their short term nature,

Fiounclul usscts aad liubilities meusured vt fair value-reeurriog falr value messurements

Particulars

an-cun'mt investment (mﬁmunl funds)
Current mvestment | |uoted mutual funds)
Total

Particulara

Currem investnent {yuoted mulual funds)

Purticulurs
Non-current investment (guoted mutual funds)

Particulurs

Carrr iny amount Fair value*
As at Asat Arat Anat Asst Asat
31 Murch 2025 31 March 2024 01 Ajril 2023 31 March 2025 31 Maorch 2024 01 Aprll 2023
209,82 185.64 167.25 20992 185.64 161.25
8541 87.59 521.25 85.41 81.59 527.25
9,802,684 B,525.38 968184 $,892.84 8,525.38 9,684.84
2489 3.20 395 2439 3.20 395
115.23 274,75 191.25 115.23 27478 19125
909.97 11.05 ¢.l4 006.97 11,05 0.14
9.27 302 - 9.27 302 -
54.36 - 54.36 - -
- 290546 3v48.8y 281930 2,905.46 3 H4B.B9 - 81830
1420735 1311951 13.193.98 14207358 13,01.19.51 15.193,98
47.00 49.00 50.00 47.00 49.00 30.00
a04.18 517.38 33285 464.18 517.38 322385
1695 3.46 311 16.75 345 il
8.1l 4239 5144 8.1l 42,39 51.44
9,695.12 9,268.58 11,219.52 9.696.12 9,268.58 11,279.52
6593.08 79.83 17449 693,08 79.83 174.49
521180 6,740.30 6,628.91 5.211.80 6,740,30 6,628.51
304 88 30238 205.20 304.88 302.38 26520
121 16 34047 9761 121 16 340.47 9161
11.%63.07 17343.79 1817314 16,%4:5,07 17.:43,7% 16,873,104
peyables and other current financial
Carvy Ing amount - Fair value
Anat Anat Asnt Apat As at Asnt
31 Murch 2025 3] Muarch 2024 01 April 2023 31 Murch 2028 3 March 2024 01 April 2023
- 0.4 0.34 - 0.44 034
53220 - 532.20 - s
53220 044 0 £32.20 0udd 034
As at 31 March 2028
Level | Level 2 Level 3
532.20 - -
Anat 31 Murch 2024
Level 1 Level2 Leveld
0.44 - -
As ot 01 Ajiril 2023
Level 1’ Level 2 Level 3
0.34 - -

Non-current invesiment (quoted mutual fuxls)

The management assessed that the fair values of short term fuanciol assets andd habilities significamly appruximate their carmying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of thess
wstruments. The far value of the fuancial assets and liabilnes is included at the amowst at which the instrument could be exchanged m o current transaction among willuy parties, other

than in a forced or hquidalion sale

The Company maintains policies and procedures 1o value finarcial assets or financiat Labilities using the best and most relevant daa available. In ediltion, the Company istemally reviaws
valuation, including independent price validation for certain instruments.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilibes is the amount that would be receivad to sall an asset or paid lo transfer a lisbility in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, reynrdless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated usiny another valuation technique.

The following methous and mssumptions were used to estimate fair value:

{a) Fair value of short lerm fusancial assets and habililies significantly approximate their carrying amounts laryely due to the shor lerm maturties of these metruments.
(b} Fair value of quoted mutual funds is based on the nst assets value at the reporting dote.

= N < .I - B
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NEOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED {CIN No, U74399DL1992PTCO50702)
Notes to fimanclal statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
{All amoris in Ra. loc, cxcepl shoco dma and per shore dota, mad ualcss oterviso siaied)

45 Flouncil inrirunents nnd ek reslew
Flnancial rish manegement (mmawock

Tha Company s linanial babidics comgnet muinly of imde payables nad other pryable. The Company s Naancinl mawly of cash ond cash ogmnalanle,

other balances with banks. keans. irnde receisablos and ofber recoivablen.

The Company is exposed o Morket nsk, Credit rivk and Liquidity risk. The Company oveesoes the masagement of tieso financil risks, Tic Conipany s agprosch o sddross
uneriaiution 1n i aadessour 1o aching 1ls slaied and wmplicit chjectines. It prescribea tho rales and sesponmsbilings of tse Company's ] Tee cishs
and tho ra wk for rish Tha fr rh ncoha (o identifh. awress and miugate financial nshs 1 ordor (o muumue potewtial adverss cffects oa the Company's
finnecial performonss,

i) Capitnl managemeni risk

The Compamy's capilal managemet objectives are; The Company i (o mainiain 8 strong capital bose s a3 1o maintain invesior, srediler and marke: confidencs and (o ssinia fuwo
developmont of the busivesy.

The Company sapital rish by capial through g of financial sateos. such me debt-io-cquiy mixo and sct barmow ings-lo-couly
rulio on o monthly bosis and implcments capital sracture imp. | plan when The Company uscs debt mtio a¢ & ¢opital mansgemeal index and calculates the ratio os
net dobt divided by tolol equily, Nel debl and tola) oquity are basetd on the amounts sinked i the luancial ppemeig,

Net et sl * vutla mind met capbal o cring ratii Iy as Bollowss

As at Aspt
Bty 3 Murch2028 3 March 2024
Noa cursenl bomow ing 1,067.65 523410
Cwront matwritics of nan-curment borrow mga 14094 1,718.54
Current bosrowings 247856 2315
Lajerom ncerid nod dud on non-current borrow ngs 811 2.9
lnjeranl accracd nnd B0t Jdue on son-guricel bomuwings 16.75 346
Total debl (A} 92097 9314.43
Caah and cash cquivalents {2,904.46) (3,948,850
Not dotit (B) 6815.52 3,365.34
Exuilly' | 181973 12519
Net debe tu ey it- ratlp BiC) [ %)) (¥ T
St zupelal gearlng eatl 1 3T4AT% $1.36%

M) Credit rlsk

Credit sisk rofors Lo sish bt » countarparty will defouli oq

ll irmdie recc ablo. other bakinces with banka, Joans nd other recoivablos.

Balits, of blon. the

The carrying amounl of financial axets the

crodil

The

m--eu,\pe.p:numnundolmmﬂm
I‘orexp:cled credit losses (ECL) ore revised ol coch mpnnlnl daic by tho use of practical expedionin viz prosivion marix,
(0 credjt rsh won Ra 98924 Ince (31 March 2024: 8,525.38 Ince. U1 Apnl

2023: Rs 9.684.84 locs) (et of wrile-ofDiproymongh reapectisely. boung 1be 1otal of the camyimny amoust ul‘hln:u nrlh rnde rlwmhln. An amount of Ra. 39.71 locs {31 March
2024; Rs 0,06 Iace, 01 April 2023: Rs 1.56 locs) has beva wrilisn-ofT ducing 1he ycar afler kg

tade roceivablos,

tho age of

in financial loes 3 the Company. Crecht rah, Arises primanly from linoncual aascls such

The pron sion

of the

e L on the §

Ind AS requires axpecied crodit fosses Lo be measured through & loss allowanco. The Company assessen i each dur of financial woiemem whather o ﬁnnml nascl or 0 group of

Ananclal sssctt is impaired, The Company recogmises lifctime capecied lossen for all coniraci azsotn snd / or aff Lrade

Forall

thal do st AL

other Manncinl msals, eapecied credit lvases ore mearured m an amount oqual 1o the 12 months eapecied credut lorsen or & an amoual cqual i U i ime aapeciod crodit losses il
the ceedit rish oa the finandial oesst hat inéreared significantly mmce mitial recogaitmn.

Tho Codapeny s primon are major

(OEMs) with good eredn rmings. Company 'y expoure 10 cwiomen i dinemilied and some customers

ool more thad 4% of calvanding becowils recoivable which farms 1% of iotal reccivablen (31 March 2024: $7% of tolal receivablce, 0L Agril 2023; $9% of tolad roceivables),
however there was 1o delinufl on sccount of these cusiomenn in the past.

The Company porfonms crodil I

han six smuonths.

on an arnual baus and recogniace crodit risk. on tha basis lifoime expecied lomey and where recoivablos ano dua fix mone

At
L Apeil 2023

S153.6

124576

4307

S

il

1133497

{2.819.30)

231476

11,063 M

or7

T



) Liquiwty risk

&) Liguldiy rixk musugenent

Liquudity rink is defincd a5 the rish thot tha Company will not bo able o sottle or moot ils obli oa Lima. The obpoctive of liquadity risk mazagement is Lo maiatain suffisical
liquidity mnd cogure 1hat Tunds arc available fof usd A8 por mguuomens. Tho Company's pewdipal sourcas of Ligudity ore cash and cash equivalonty mnd 1ho cash flow that is
geaeated from opecations. Tho Compony balives that the worhug cagital i sulliciont L awol il custont requuicrasals, Ad st 31 March 2025, tho Company had a wecking capual of
Ra. 6.976.87 Ince including cash and cash couivalcris of Re 2,905,46 lecs (31 Marck 2024; Re 4.57).69 lecy Including cash sod cush cqmvidonts of Rs. 3,943,0% bacs, 01 April 2023;
Ra 5,023.92 lacs including cash wud cork equivalonts of R 2,519,30 Lacs),

) Maturities uf finuoclul linbithles

The fallowing whics dotl the Company’s remaning coulracioal malanty for ik {financial liakillues with agreed repayment penods. The omounl disclosed in the lables have been
drawn up basad on the undiscounied eagh Nows of fiamncinl Lisbilities based on the corlicst duic on which e Company can be required ie pay. The Wables include both inserosl and
principal cash Mous.

Ax st 31 March Ju2d Axut 51 March 2024 Arsd
!lﬂ_kullrl Lew lboa | veur 18 - eurn Lesihan 1 iezr 15 cars Leaa thea
Finunclal lnidlitles =
Trado securily deposits 4100 - 4. - “.un -
Logan llabilitios 187 2048 14731 16457 1837 16967
Bormow gy (non-curment) 2,190 3.067.65 171854 52310 LS. 76 1,183.6%
Indorest accruo and nol dut on bormowings 16.75 - 14 - 3 -
Inicrom aceruo and duc an bomon ings 4. - 41.59 - LK -
Borrow lnge (curoaly 24756 - 31584 - S BT -
. Creditary fox copital eapencilures Wi - 0. - 1M -
“Trato payabloy - 674030 - 062191 -
ifmyabla 10 employess - Su23M - 265,10 -
Lishilitios for oy« nscs - Hu 47 9701 -
Tl SHLH 174012 faansd [EE0 Y ] 43576

) Muturiticn of Rnuntiul mscts
“The follow ing bls dekubs the Compans “s eapecied matunty For financiol amcts, The inbke has been drown up based on the und. d | of the i
Including iecext that will be carmed oo such asscls,

Particulur A o 31 Murch 21328 Au st J1 March 2024 Anut ¥ Airil 2023
Lean (hun | ear 1-5 “eary Cewnthan | -oar 18 -vars Lt thest | wcar [E-R |

Finoacial sneis '] Inedl euml)
Scowsily deposits kLY 17424 3843 4671 O30 1044
Losa to employeen 63,45 218 .00 17.3% 300.5% 6.0
Tk mocivables Y.ADL44 - ¥,528.38 908484
lncome accruad on dopoais M8 - a2 398
Exporl inccalive recaisables 11313 - M7 191.2% -
Cash and cash oquivalems LA - Mg 241930 -
-Bonk bal ﬂhm'llnlulhlndcuhnmnllum LU - 1S w4 -
Othor ods a7 - an - -
Margin mm,v, uhpwu with original maturiiy of more Lhon B 5336
oue cor . . - B . -
s 11,1516 280, Y [ECE-E] 18704
iv) Murkst cisk

eket rigk i the risk thot Lhe lair value or Muure cosh News of & 1 ! will £ bocouse of chaages m marked prices. Such chanpen 18 the values of financial

instrumenis may resull from changes in the foroign cumescy exchauge rakcy, lnicrest rates, credil, liquidity and othor markel changes. The Compam s exposare o market rigk 1y
primarily on accannt of foreign currency eachanye rate cish.

u) Furviga Currency exchange rute risk

The Ructuation n forcign currcncy exchange mics may have potential impacl on the sotement of profit or loss and other comprehentive Licome and cquily, hore any lnuuel.m
rofurences more 1han ono currency of where amcis / Labildicn are desominated w & curreacy other tan the funciosal currencs of the respesiive antited, Contsd

ud economic cn iroament i which the Company oparics, 1t operations are subjoct o rih wrising from fluctucueny in exchange mics i those countrics Tha risks pnmnl.\ nlak
to Nustuations in USD. EUROC. CNY. RUB and GBF agowst Lhe respertive funclional currcngies of the Company. The Compons ovaluaics the impoct of fercign oxchange ric
Mucloaliona by swscezing its exposre (v exchange rale rishs. The infixmation on farcign cwrency expasures are ax foliows;




Amoun R Amntlnormin g e Amousiin g ATSRBIIRD L e AmamtinRs AT e

eurres: T urTeng: fore: ;= currenc:
S Farslm cnreney == Anwt At Asat Aan Ana Aant Anm Anat
- 31 Murch2035 3| Murch2038 3980 h2038  SIMurch 2024 3{Musch2024 31 Muih3034 01 aprll 2008 B prit5iii  BY apes 2023
USh LI 236 5.0 el ¥ .37 ELY7) a6l un
Trade paablos RUB - : . »n 3228 081 5 . 5
EURO 149 s 9232 P 0% w1 Bl %4 1951
. UsD 3059 e o 326390 EY B3 23649 nn 02
Forciga curoncy foan (ierm loar) EURC 139 ™ 9232 5 . - . : .
Foroiy: currcnc *loan PCI1 usp - - - - - 133 222
il fa — T F o 1H =
Uso Z005.25 FiFT] 5 F ¥ YT (k] TR [7L7]
) ONY 0% 2% T 137038 11825 T 26 119
e BURG 7w oW 9252 12561 015 022 s 651 Bl
—— cep 1 w ) 5 . R - 5
I T7%6a Y] A
usD 186061 L8 5.5 wys I wnar w97 ®08 2n
EURO 7S ™ i i uGs w22 30 034 el
oNY (3099 (62.06) e 137%) e il.od 4251 (@63 19
RUB i ) . ™22 Ty Y - ) -
e 3 ) 17 . . X e B}
Totsd 1 #1 ik 1577.93 JEN U w48

Foreign cwrrenty sensdilyity
Tho fbliowing wblke demonsimics the ssiliily 10 a rasonable pousibic change in USD, EURO, CNY, nunndasrmhup Takos, with il oher variabios Mumm the mpulmlht.‘onqpuur 'w profit before X due 1o clngok i the fair vake of

mnmilqs aaaty and liabifuscs. Tho Compan} ‘s eaposure 1o forcign cunoncy chanyes for all othor cunoncics in sol matcrial. Tha sermtivily analyms s d o 1be nel uabedyed of ko Compuny a3 wi (he reponisy daa. 10% mypresests
c 1 of by possibie change in foreign exchange rate.
- Ar al 31 March 2025 Aaat ) March 2024 Asai O e 2023 =
—— Curreacy Chunge In rute m“ll ':;_m"‘ Currency Change |s rade m“f "'I:"'"“ Currenes  Chasge in rme lf""l _I":I:"
= usb 1M FAT] UsD W% T L4 UusD % (U.60)
uUsSD =10% 2 1% UsD =1U% (L1 usD =%
EURD [ L] EURO 1 o7 EURD 1% 003
EURO =l0% (L] EURD =% {007 EURO -10% (0.03)
I . CNY 1% (%] CNY % (1 L}] CNY 1% (2.86)
Sonsility Acwiysia oNY (0% 62 CNY -I0% LA ONY -Io%, 286
RUB 0% - RUB 1% 3.3 RUB 1% -
RUB =1U% - RUB =l0% (3.13) RUB =10% -
GBP % L) aBp % - asp 1P -
GBP =1the G0 aBp -l0% - apr =10% -
In ‘s opinian, th sensitih iy anolyais is unrep ive of the wnhereat foesign cachango rish because the exposurs of tha end ol ke reporing pariod doas not reflect the

Iul.nlaulnnu‘hl

Intorext ratc rish is the righ that the Dir salue or Miure cash Nlows of a Msanclal instirunont will Nueluale becags: of chanpe in marke! imercel mics. Tha Compam “s caposre 1o Ihe
tish of changes in market intorom o relotcs primarily 1 1he Company's cash crodut orking copiinl loans and werm Lowas.

Particular ey e fust

31 Maseh 2023 3 March 204 UL Ay ril 2023
(i) Cnsh eredit limit 2ATA2? 21868 LEN.7
i Lony = loons includin, ewirent maturities. LAUTM 6.952 ik [l XL]
Teul YLUSHY .I6629 1.2




Interest rute sendilyity

The senailiy ity analymn belew hasa boen determined basod 00 onposwre ko interont rue. For Nooting rato linbilitses, analy ws 15 prepared assunuyg The smousl of lisbility outrianding st
the and of Wha raporting perod wog outnanding, for tha wivolc year. With oll other varmbles kald coastant. the Compaay's profit before tax in afTected Lrouph the impact oa Nowting
o6 bocrowungt. a8 follows:

Anl Armt Al
e 31 March 025 31 March 2024 UL Aj 203
Inareass by 1.00% %.90 9168 1w
Decroasc by 1.00% 9% ) nzm
o Cummwdity price risk

Movement in commodity price in markst affects dircty of indireetly U peice of mw motcrial nad comporeats used by the Company. The Company #olls Us producu maialy w0 awo
‘makors {Original Equipment Manutbcturer) whereby ihero 4 » regulnr negwlintivaiulustmen of pricas on the basis of chaages in commodily prices,

{Fiva spor fixy brem coirnimunll irft bhomit}
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NEOLITE ZKW LIGUTINGS PRIVATE LINITED (CIN No, U74899DL1992PTC050702)

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
.(All amounts in Rs. lavs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

46  Corporate sociul reaponsibllity (CSR) expenditure

As required by section 135 of the companies Act, 2013, The company has made the provision for an amount to be spent on CSR activities. The company has no
outstending commitment as on 31 Mairch 2025 towards vomorate social responsibility projects. The break-up of expenditure/contribution towards under corporate
social responsibility as under:

For the yeur ended For the year ended

farticulan, 31 March 2025 31 March 2024 _
Gross amount required to be spent during the year 50.20 57.48
Losg:= Amouut 3| ient durin. the -ear 50.20 57.43
Short/ excess) amount 5 ent - -

List of nuture of CSR wctivity
The coatribution is made to organisation working towards health care and medical support for Birds and Animals, child education, naturopathy yoga and meditation
progtamme.

47 Additional regulatory disclosures as per schedule L1 of Companies Act, 2013

(i) The Title deeds of the immovable properties {other than properties where the Company is the Jessee and the lease agreements ane duly executed in favour of the
lessee) are held in the name of the Company.

(ii) The Cumpany does not have any investment property,

(iii) As per the Company's accounting pulicy, Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets are carried at historical cost (less accumulated depreciation &
impairmeot, if any), hence the revaluation related disclosures required as per Additional Regulatory Information of Schedule [11 {revised) to the Companies Act, is not
applicable.

(iv) The Company has not yranted Loans or Advances in the nature of loan to any promoters, Directoss, KMPs and the related parties (As per Companies Act, 2013),
which are repayable on deraand or without specifying any terms or period of repayments.

(v) No proceedings have beea initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benani Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45
of 1988) and the rules made thereunder.

(vi} The Compnny has sanctioned facilities from banks oa the basis of security of current assets. The periodic returns filed by the Company with such banks are in
apreement wilh the books of avcounts of the Company exc;t in the foliowing vases:

Nature of the  As per bouks Amougt a3 per

For the quarter eaded current asset  of accounts q":":;lyr"::'m Variance*
= Jun-24 Trade ;1 ables 0.553.52  6585.67 1s
Jun-24 Inventories 4 676.06 4 676.06 -
Trade
3 Jun-24 receivables 8,120.41 3,102.42 (17.99)
Se)=24 Trade [i1vables 6.325.49 & 339.68 14,19
Sep-24 Inventaries 6.194.31 6 194.74 0.43
Sep-24 LT 8.201.38 818437 (1701)
reccivables
Dec-24 Teade ja.ables 6.425.88 G478.25 5237
Dee-24 Invenlories 6 303.51 6.305.27 1.76
Dec-24 o 7.832.78 784776 1498
receivables
Mar-25 Trade | @ -ables 5.211,80 588495 673.15
Mar-25 Inventories 611852 580,18 (238.34)
Mar-25 — 9,892.84 9T (16567
receivables

“these differences are mainly due to prior reporting to banks before quarterly closure uf bocks.

(vii) The Company has adhered 1o debt repayment and interest service obligations on time. Wilful defaulter related diselosures required as per Additional Rﬁgulltory
Information of Schedule 111 {revised) to the Cofmpanics Act, is not applicable.

(viii) Thore are no transactions with the Companies whose name are struck off under Section 248 of The Companics Act, 2013 or Section 560 of the Companies Act,
1956 cluring the vear ended 31 March 2025,

(ix) All applicoble casss where registration of charges or satisfactioa is required tu be filed with Registrar of Companies have been filed. No registration or satisfaction
is pending at the year ended 31 March 2025,

(x) The Cumpany has complied with the nuinber of layers proseribed under clanse (87) of Section 2 of the Compenivs Act, 2013 read with Companies (Restriction on
number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

(xi) Nu scheme oF arangement has been approved by the competent authurity in terms of Section 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(xir} The Compary has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entily(ies). including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest iu other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ( ultimate beneficiaries)

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to ur on behalf of the ultimate beneficiary

(xiii) The Company have not received auy fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreiyn entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded
in wriling or otherwise) that the Conpany shall:

(a} directly or indireutly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsvever by or an behalf of the cempany ( ultimate beneficiaries)

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimale Beneficiaries

(xiv} The Company hias net operated in any cryplo currency or Viriual Cuirrency transactions

(xv) During the year the Cumpany has not disclosed or surrendered, any income other than the income recoginsed in the books of accounts in the tax assessments
under Income Tax /iit, 1961,

1 -
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48 Kis Finuncials Rotios

For the yeur ended For the year ended

Variance

Particulars Nusgatan Deavminatur 31 March 2028 31 March 2024
1) Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities Times 1.4l 131 7.60%
[ E R L [ - Total debt Edjidiky Times ~ 0.53 0.72 125.57%)
Earning for debt servige =
Net profit after taxes + Noa
cash
3) Debt sarvi operating expenses Debt service =
) Debt sorvice coverage iy depreciation and other Interest + Principal Times 307 186 65.36%
ratio amortizations + Interest + Repayments
other adjustments like loss
on sale of propecty, plant &
eyuipment ete.
. Net profits alter taxes — ) .
4) Return on equity preference dividend (if any) Average sharehokler’s equity % 3390% 15.85% 113.87%
. Net sales including other . .
5) Inventory turnover ratio o eratin s income Average inventory Times 9.93 .37 5.96%
6) Trade receivable umover  Net sales including ather Average trade receivables Times 5.56 443  25.63%
ralio = i1 eratin income i
Zzt?:m payable turnuver Tolal purchases Average trado payables - Times 4.68 326 43.42%
8) Net working capital o F Working capital
turnover ratio ) |.m.l|._ndmg aies (current assets less current Times 8.87 840 5.58%
operating income liabilities)
. Net sales including .
9) Net profit mtiv Net profil e e mee % 10.32% 4.73% L18.17%
10) Retuen on capital Eaming befure interest ang {Tangible net worth + Total
emylov=d tax (EBIT debt + Deferred tax liabilit. | s S R L
11| Relurn on invesiment®  Income | -nerated from invested A viize Investruent % 11.92% 26.79% 1 55.50%)

Debt equity ratio:- The ratio has decline due te increase in exuity on account of better camings during the year.

Debt service coverage ratic:- The ratio hag increased due 1o increase in net profit earned during the year.

Return on equity:- The ratio has incrensed due to increase in net profit eamed during the year,

Trade receivable tumover ratio:- The variance is on acvount of increase in revenue frum operations in the current year.

Trade payable turnover ratio:- The variance is a result of incrense in purchases made dusing the year and decline in average trade payables.
Net prufit rativ:- The rativ has increased due to increase in net profit eamed during the year.

Return un capital employed:- Increase is due 1o increase in eamings before interest and tax during the year.

Retumn on investment:- The decline in ratio is as a result of increase in average investment value.

*For the purposes of caleuation of the relurn on investnen! ralio, the investment in fixed deposits with banks and interest earned on
the same has not been considered as the fixed deposits have been made for uiilisativn in the propused business expansion.

49 Ducs to Micro Smull and Medium Enterprises

The Minisiry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued on office memorandum dated August 26, 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Meworandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in
accordance with the *Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" (*the Act’). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such
enterpriged ag at 31 March 2025, as at 31 March 2024 and a8 at 01 April 2023 has besn made in the financial statements based on information received and available
with the Company. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.

Parficulars Asat As at As st
31 March 2028 31 March 2024 01 April 2023

The amounts remaining unpaid 10 micro and sinall suppliers as at the end of the year

= Principal 1,037.65 429.24 -

= Interest 9.0l 5.14 -
The amounty of the payments made to micro and small suppliers as at the end of
the year beyond the appointed day,

= Principal - - -

= Interest - - -
The amounl of interest due and payable for the period (where the principal Las 387 5.14 -
been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 nut paid):
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 9.0l 5.14 -
accounting year; and .
The amount of further interest due and payable oven in the succeeding vears, 3.87 514 -

until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpuse of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
seclion 23, .

50 The Directors do not recommend any dividend during the year in view of the requirement of funds for future growth of the the Company.

51 The Code on Sucial Securily, 2020 (*Code’) relating to empluyee benefils during employment and posi-employmenl benefits received Presidential assent in
September, 2020. The Code has been published in (he Gazette of India, However, the date un which the Code will come in to the effect has nut been notified. The
Company will assess Lhe impact of the Code when it comes into effoct and wilt record any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective.

52 The Compan; has used accowning software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throid | ut the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the soRware, except that audit trait feature is not enabled at the database level insofar as it relates
to accounlir; ._.l': Iware and the audit (rail feature is also not enabled for certain changes made using priviledge/ndminisirative access right to the applications.

b
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53 First time adoption of lod AS

These are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For the year ended upto and including 3§ March 2024, the Company had
prepared its financinl stalements in acoordance with Companivs {Acovunting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the Act and other relovant
provisions of the Act (Previous GAAP), The accounting policies set out in Note | have been applied in preparing these financial statements for the year ended 31
Mareh 2025 including the comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2024 and the opening Ind AS balance sheet on the date of transition i.e. 01 April 2023
{Transition date’).

In preparing its Ind AS balance sheet as at ¢1 April 2023, and in presenting the comparative information for the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has adjusted
amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with Previous GAAP as detniled hereunder and scoordingly the impact of such trangition
on the Campany's financial position and financial performance is listed hereunder:

In preparing these financial statements, the Company hag nppiied the below mentioned exceptions:
{A) Ind AS optionsl exemptions

(i) Deemed cust for propecty, plant and equipnient aad intangible ussets

Ind AS |01 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognized in the financial Katements
83 at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the Previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as al the date of transition. This sxemption can also be used
for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets. Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment (iocluding
capital work in progress) and intangible asset (including intangible assets under development}) at their Previous GAAP carrying value.

{B) Ind AS mandutory exemptions

(i) Estimntes

An enlily's estimales in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accondance with
previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in emor. Ind AS
estimates as at 1 April 2023 are consistent with the estimates as ot the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP.

(il) Classificativn und measurement of finuncial assets und Habilities

Classification of financial asset is required to be made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition io Ind AS. Further, if it is
impracticable for the Company to apply relrospectively the effective intercst method in Ind AS 109, the fair value of the financial asset or the financial liability at the
date of ransitiun to Ind AS shall be the new yrouss carrying amount of that financial auset or the new amortised cust of that financial liability at the date of transition to
Ind AS.

(iii) impuirment of financial assets
At the dute of transition to Ind AS, determining whether there has been a significant increase in cresdit risk since the initial recognition of a financial asset would
require undue cost or effort, the Compauy has recopnised a loss allowance at an amount equal to Lifetime expected credit losses at each repoding date until that
financial instrument is de-recognised.

{C) Notes to first time adaption

(i) Finunciul assets und lizbilities at umortised cost

Under previous GAAP, financial assets (including socurity depasits) were recognized at transaction price. Under Ind AS, such financial instruments are initially
recognized at fair value and subgequently carried at amortised cost determined using the Effective Interest rate. Any difference between transaction price and fair value
affects profit and loss unless it quantiles for recognition o8 some other type of nssel.

Ind AS 109 requires transaction custa incurred towards urigsinativn of borrowings 1o be deducted from the carrying amount of borrowings on initial recognition. These
tosts are recognized in the stalement of profit and loss over the tenuce of the borrowing as part of the finance cost by applying the effective interest method. Under
previvus GAAP, these transactivn costs were charged 1o statement of profit and loss on straight line basis over the period of loan.

{ii) Impact of depreciation on right on use asscts and laterest on [euse linbilitics

Under previons GAAP, lessees used to classify lease confracts as a finance luase or an operating lease at the inveption of contract. Under operating lease, rent payments
were recognised as an expense ju the statement of profit and loss on a strajght-line basis over the lease-lerm. Under lod AS, the Company measures the lease liability at
the present valua of the outstanding lease payments lrom Jease commencement date, discounted nsing the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Subsequent to initiol
measurenient, the liability is reduced for payments made and increased for interest expense. Further, the Company recognises right-of-use asset which is made up of
the initial nveasurement of the lease liability, including any initial direct costs incurred by the Company.

‘Subsequenlly to initial measurement, 1he Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commeucement date to the earlies of the
end of the useful life of the right of- use asset or the end of the lease lerm.

(ili} Revenue from contract with custumers

Under Previous GAAP, revenue was recognized net of trade disgounts, rebates, sales taxes and excise duties. Under IND AS, revenue is recognized at the fair value of
the consideration recsived or receivable, after deductivn of any trade discounts, cash discounts, volume rebates and any taxss or duties collected on behalf of the
government such as goods and service tax.

{i¥) Impuct of expected credit losses
Under previous GAAP, provision for financial asset is recognised on specific identification methud based on management assessment of recoverability of loans, Under
Ind AS 109, the Company is requinad to apply expected credit loss model for recognising the allowance for lvans,

{v) Lmpact of fair valuation of the finaacial instruments
Under previous GAAP, investments in equily/mulual funds insirument were carried at cost and tested for other than empuorary diminution. Under Ind AS, such
investments are carsied at fair value through peolit or loss (FVTEL) of fair value through other comprebensive income (FYOC).

(vi} Tux impact oo adjustments
Retained earnings and stalement of profit and loss has been adjusted consequent to the Ind AS transition adjustnients with corresponding impact to defarred tax,
wherever applicable,

(vii) Qther comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all ilems of income and expense recognized in a period should be included in profit and loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits
othenwise. lteyr of income and expense that are not recognised profit and Juss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss as “other comprehensive income"
includes re-nieaiurements of defined beuefit plans and their corresponding income tax effects, The concopt of other comprehensive income did not exist under
previous GAI|" P —

[/ . f-._\t;-}iw/ &




NEOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No. U74899DL1992PTC050702)

(.  mounts in Rs. lacs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

(D) Reconciliation of the assets and liabilities presented in the balance sheet of the audited financial statements prepared as per previous

GAAP and as per the Ind AS financial statements is as follows;

. Effect of As per lod AS . Effect of As per lnd AS
Particulars Nute ;?:?::::I ;;;L Transition to as at 3?::’::1‘ ;;;; . Transition to asat
IND AS 31 March2024 | o IND AS 01 April 2023
Assets
Noo-current asseis
Property, plant and equipment 13,171.26 - 13.174.26 11,505.34 - 11,505.34
Capital work-in-progress 100.88 - 100.88 - - -
Right-of-use assels L = 500.97 500.97 c 310.89 310.89
Intangible assets | 4545 . 4545 8437 - 84.37
Financial Assets -
Investments 2 0.10 0.34 0.44 0.10 0.24 0.34
Loans 3(a) 17.59 17.59 5 26.70 26.70
Other financial assets 3 (a) 146.71 146.71 - 160.44 160.44
Other non-currenl assets I(a) 1,141.14 {170.65) 970.50 | 356.80 192.76; 164.04
Total non-current assets 14.158.84 194.97 14953.31 | 11.946.60 30551 12.282.11
Current ussets
Inventories 4,196.10 . 4,196.10 4,405.19 - 4,405.19
Financial assets
Trade receivables 3{c) & (d) 8.376.86 148.52 §,525.38 8,319.89 1,364.95 9.684.84
Cash amn cash equivalents 3{e) 3,959.94 (1£.05) 3,948.89 2,819.44 (0.14) 2,81930
Bank balances other than
cash and cash cquivalents 3 - 11.05 11.05 - 0.14 0.14
Loans 3 (b} 2,645.68 (2,575.68) 70.00 2,154.97 (1,654.41) 500.55
Other financial agsets 3(b)&(c) - 319.89 319.89 - 202.00 202.00
Other current assets J(b)& () 246.29 213803 2.384.32 117.45 1452.30 1.569.74
Totul current ussets 1942487 30.77 19.455.63 | 17.816.93 1.164.84 19. 181,77
Total assets 33 883.71 525,73 34 409.44 29.763.54 1.670.38 31.433.88
Equities and Liubilitien
Equity
Equity share capital 1,356.22 5 1,356.22 1,356.22 & 1,356.22
Other equity 1&2 11,639.58 23.00) 11616.57 9,729.98 (17.46) 9712.52
Total equity 12.995.79 (23.00) 129779 11,086.20 (17.46)  11.068.74 |
Liabilities
Noa-curreat Linbilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 5,234.10 - 5234.10 3,153.69 - 5,153.69
Lease liabilities 1 - 369.57 369.57 - 169.07 169.07
Provisions 324.12 - 324.12 286.00 - 286.00
Deferred tax liabilities {net) 623.92 0.00 623.92 598.53 - 598.53 |
Total non-current liabilities 6,182.14 369.57 6.551.71. 6,038.22 169.07 6207.29 |
Current linbilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 4 (a) 4,003.12 3136 4,034.48 4,760.88 1,364.95 6,125.83
Lease liabilities 1 - 147.81 147.81 - 153.79 153.79
Trade payables 6,740.30 - 6,740.30 6,628.91 - 6,628 91
Other financial liabilities 4{b) - 817.54 817.54 - 641.85 641.85
Provisions 4 (c) 195.28 (80.92) 114.36 167.29 (30.21) 137.08
Other current liabilitics 4 (b 3,767.08 (817.54) 2.949.55 1,082.04 (641.85) 440.18
Current tax liabilities {net) 4(c) 80.92 8092 | - 3021 3021 |
Total current liabilitics 14,705.78 179.17 14.884.95 12.639.12 1.518.74 14.157.86
Totul Hubilities ' 20,887.92 548.714 21.436.65 18.677.34 1:87.80 26.165.14
Total equity and linbilities 33 883.71 X25.73 34.409.44 | 29.763.54 1.670.3% . 31433.88
* The audited financial {{ tements figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note
Note:- There have bu\:.!'fm re.Letfiminl adjustment in the financial year ended 31 Moeoh 2025 P i
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NEOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No. U74899DL1992PTC050702)
-1l amounts in Rs. lacs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

(D) Reconciliation of the income and expenses presented in the statement of profit and loss of the audited financial
statements prepared as per previous GAAP and as per the Ind AS financial statements is as follows:

N N For the y car ended 31 March 2024
Audited for the Effect of As per Ind As for
Particulars Note year ended Transition to the year ended
31 March 2024* IND AS 31 March 2024
INCOME
Revenue from Operations 5 40,343.09 (44.34) 40,298.75
Other income 1,2,5&8 138.88 180.00: 58.88
TOTAL INCOME 40.481.98 1124.38) 40 357.63
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 8 21,453.53 (62.37) 21,391.15
Purchase of stock in trade 429.99 - 429.99
Change in inventory of Finished goods, Work in Progress and i} 266,65
Stock in Trade 266.65 )
Employee benefils expense 6 6,108.10 (L.&87) 6,106.22
Finance costs 1&7 824.33 102.75 927.07
Depreciation and amotization expenses | 1,338.35 209.95 1,548.30
Other expenses L5&7 7.425.91 1369.131 7.056.78
TOTAL EXPENSES 37.846.85 i120,67¢ 37,726.18
Profit before tax 2,635.13 (3.67) 2,631.45
Tax expenses
Current tax 6 700.61 0.50 701.11
Deferred tax liability/ (assets) 25.39 - 25.39‘
Short tax provision for earlier years 10.47) - 10.47)
Profit after tax 1.909.60 417 _1.905.43
Other comprehensive income/(loss):
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
statement of profit und loss:
Defined benelit plan remeasurements 6 - (1.87) (1.87)
lnco_me lax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 6 0.50 0.50
profit or loss -
- : 1137} 1137
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to the
statement of profit and loss _ B = =
Other comprehensive income fur the year, net of tax ; - i1.3% 11,37
|
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 1,909.60 i 8.85) 1,904.05 |
| ]

* The audited financial stalements figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.

Note:- There have been no restatement adjustment in the financial year ended 31 March 2025

(This spave bas been intentionally lft blank)
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NEOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No. U74899DL1992PTC050702)
] amounts in Rs. lacs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

(D) Effect of Ind AS adoption on the Financial Statements - Explanatory Notes

I Right-of-use assets
The company has adopied IND AS 116 effective 01 April 2023, using the mudified retrospective method. The company has applied the standard to its leases with
cumulative effect recognised on the date of initial application (01 April 2023). This has resulted in recognising a right of use asset of Rs 494.03 lacs as at 31 March 2024
and Rs 305.16 lacs as at 01 April 2023 along with a corresponding lease liability of Rs 517.38 lacs as at 31 March 2024 and Rs 322.85 lacs as at 01 April 2023.

The difference of Rs 23.34 lacs and Rs 17.70 lacs in ROU asset and ROU liability created as at 31 March 2024 and 01 April 2023 is as explained. An amount of Rs 17.70
lacs has been 1aken to retained earnings as ot 01 April 2023 for the effect of ROU asset and ROU liability created and remaining difference is detailed below:-

Effect of IND AS 116

As at Asat

31 March 2024 €1 Aprl2023
Right-of-use assets 494.03 305.16
Lease linbilities {(current) 147.81 153.79
Lease liabilities {(non-current) 369.57 169.07
Difference of Right-of-use assels and Lease liabilities recognised in retained eamings 2335 17.70

For the year ended

Other expenses 31 March 2024
Rent (decrease) (223.40)
Selling and distributivn expenses (decrease) 13.301
Total (a) 1226.70
Finanve cost
Interest expense on lease liabilities (increase) 3724
Depreciativn and anwrtizativa expenses
Amortization on right of use asscts (increase) 209.95
Total (b) - 247.19
Difference (c) = {{b)-(a)} - —— 20,49
Other income
Gain on derecognition of right of use assels and lease liabilities on account of termination and modification of leases (increase) 9.80
Unwinding of interest on financial assets {increase) 5.04
Total (d) 14.54.
Difference () = {{d)-{¢)) ' 868

2 Fair value of investments
The investment previously measured at lower of cosf or fair valug under previous GAAP amounting to Rs 0.10 lacs has been measured at fair value through Profit and Loss

account (FVTPL) as per IND AS 109, The fair value of the investment as on 31 March 2024 is Rs 0.44 lacs, and the cumulative resulting gain of Rs 0.34 lacs out of this Rs
0.24 lacs has been recognised in retained earnings of financial year 2022-23. The current year increase in investment value amounting to Rs 0.10 lacs recognised in Profit
and Luoss account.

The fair value of the invesiment as on 81 April 2023 is Rs 0.34 lacs, and the cumulative resulting gam of Rs 0.24 lacs has been recognised in retained earning;.

Asat

O Aprll 2023
Value of investment as per previous GAAP as at ¢l April 2023 0.10
Value of investment as per Ind AS as at 01 April 2023 034
Ditference of above recognised in retained earnings 0.24

For the year ended

31 March 2024

Other income

Net gain on fair va_,r!lion of invesiments carricd al fair value through profit & loss (increase) 0,10
f 0,10
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3 Previously, the financlal statements were prepared on the basis of lndlan GAAP. With the adoption of IND AS in the current yeur, we have reclassified following

~<gets. The presentation has been updated as follows

- {a) 'Under the previous GAAP 'Other non-current assets’ includes staff advance and security deposits which have been reclassified to 'Loans {non-current), 'Right-of-use assets'

and 'Other financial assets {(non-current)' respectively as per the requirement of IND AS.

Other non-current ussets

Previvus GAAP
Other non-current assels (decrease)

IND AS presentation -

Right-of-use assets (increase) (net of amortisation)
Loans non-current (increase)

Other financial assets non-current (increase)

As at Asat
31 Murch 2024 01 April 2023

1170.65) 1192.761

1 176.65) 192,70}

6.34 5.62

17.59 26.70

= 146.71 160.44
170.68 192.76

(b) Under the previous GAAP 'Short-term Joans & advances' includes Advances other than capital advances and Balance with statutory authorities. Export incentive receivable
included in Balance with statutory authorities to the tune of Rs 274.75 lacs (previous year Rs 191.25 lacs) and security deposit of Rs 39.52 lacs (Rs 6.91 lacs) have been
reclassified to 'Other financial assets (current) and 'Right-of-use assets' as per the requirement of IND AS. Further, Advances other than capital advances and remaining

balance with statutory authorities reclassified to *Other current assets'.

Short-term loans & advaaces

Previous GAAP
Short term loans and advances (decrease)

IND AS presentation

Right-of-use assets (increase) (net of amortisation)
Other financial assels current (increase)

Other current assets {increase)

As at Asat
31 March 2024 01 April 2023

(2,575.68, 1165441
12,575,68) 1,654.41)

0.59 0.11

316.70 198.05
225839 1456.25
2,575.68 165441

(¢} Under the previeus GAAP 'Other current ssels' includes [nterest accrued on Margin moncy deposit which have been reclassified to 'Other financial assets (cwrent)
respectively as per the requirement of IND AS. Further, there has been a reclassification of unbilled receivable amounting to 117.16 lacs which was included under other

current assets in the previous GAAP which is now reclassitied to trade receivables,

Other current psscts

Previcus GAAP
Other current assets (decreass)

IND AS preseatation
Other financial assets current (increass)
Trade receivables current (increase)

As at Asat
31 March 2024 01 April 2023

112036 13,95

320 395
117.16 .

120,36 395

-(d) Under the previous GAAP, sales bill discounting Facility ubtained from banks amounting to Rs 31.36 lacs (previous year Re 1,364.95 lacs) hos been disclosed as contingent
liability which has now been recognised as borrowings (current, financial liabilities) in IND AS finantinl statements. Correspondingly, amount of trade receivables which
were derecognised in previous GAAP financials amounting to Rs 31.36 lacs has been restated with the said amount.

IND} AS presentution
Trade receivables {increase)

31.36 1,364.95

I3 135335

{e) Under the previous GAAP 'Cash and cash equivalents' includes depusits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than one year which have been reclassified to
‘Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents’ respectively as per the requirement of IND AS.

Cash and cash cqulvalents

Previous GAAP
Cash and cash equivalents { Decrease)

IND AS presChitation
Bank bala/jces/ ther than cash and cash equivalents (increuse)

-
i ! | — -

R4 ), P w““\)i%

",

—

As at Asat
31 March 2024 01 Ayiril 2023

{11.05) (0.14)

{1105} [{
11.05 0.14
11.08 0,14

AT,



4 Previously, the flnanclal stutements were prepared on the basis of Indlan GAAP. With the adoption of IND AS in the current year, we have reclassified followlng
““~bilities. The presentation has been updated as follows

(a) Under the previous GAAP 'Short-term borrowings' includes current maturitics of iong-term debt which have been reclassified to 'Other financial liabilities (current)’ as per
the requirement of IND AS. Further, bill discounting facilily obtained from banks amounting to Rs 31.36 lacs (Rs 1,364.96 lacs) has been disclosed as contingent liability in
previous GAAP financials which has now been recognised as borrowings (current, financial liabilities) in IND AS financial statements.

Asat Asut

Borrowings 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Previous GAAP
Short-term berrowings increase 31.36 1.:64.95

31.36 1,364.95
IND AS presentation
Borrowings (current, financial liabililies) {increase) 3L36 1 364.95
Total (b) 31.36 1,361.95

(b) Under the previous GAAP ‘Other current liabilities' includes Interest accrued and due on borrowings, Interest accrued and not due on burrowings, Creditors for capital
expenditure, Payable to employess, Liabilities for acorued expensus and Trade security deposits which have been reclassified to 'Other financial liabilities (current)' as per
the requirement of IND AS. '

As at Asat

Other current linbilities 31 March 2024 01 Apirdl 2023
Previous GAAP
Other current linbilities {(decrease) 1817.54 1641.85

181784 1641851
IND AS presentation
Other financial liabilities (increase) 817.54 641.85

817.54 641.85

{e) Under the previous GAAP 'Short-term provisions' includes Income tax provisions which have been reclassified to *Current tax linbilities (net)' as per the requirement of IND
AS.

As at Asat
Provisions 31 March 2024 01 April 2023
Previous GAAP
Provisions {decrease) o 180.92| 130.21}
180.92) i30.21
IND AS presentation
Current tax liabilities (net) (increase) 80.92 3021
80.92 30.21

§ Reveaue from operativas
Under Previous GAAP, revenue was recognized net of trade discounts, rebates, sales taxes and excise duties. Under IND AS, revenue is recognized at the fair valug of the
consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, cash discounts, volutme rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government
such as sales tax and value adkled tax except excise duly. Discounts given include rebates, price reductions and incentives given to customers, promotional couponing and
trade communication costs which have been reclassified from “other expenses” under Previous GAAP and netted fram revenue under IND AS, Accordingly, cash discount
amounling to Rs 76.92 lacs and Rs 51.54 lacs for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 01 April 2023 respectively, was reclassified from Other expense head and netted of

For the year ended
31 Murch 2024
Revenue from operativas -
Net sales {dccrease) 144.34
|44.34)

Other income
Gain on exchange Nuctluation {decrease) (32.58)
Other expenscs
Administrative and selling expenses (decrease) 176.92/

J i



6 Remeasurement of defined benefit Plans
Tn the financial statements prepared under previous GAAP, measurement benefit of defined plens, arising primarily due to change in sctuarial assumptions was recognized
‘employee benefifs expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Under IND AS, such measurement benefits relating to defined benefit plans is recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income as per the requirements of Ind AS 19- Employee benefits. Consequently, the related tax eftect of the same has also been recognized in Other
Comprehensive Income.

For the year ended

31 March 2024
Employes cost {decrease) 1.87
Other comprehensive loss (increase} (1.87)
Tax eftuct 0.50
Other eomprehensive loss (net of tax effect) {137

7 Finance cost
Under previous GAAP, upfront interest cost incurred on discounting of sale bills from banks was recognised under cash discount grouped under the head 'other expenses'
which as per IND AS has been reclassified to 'finance cost'.

“For the year ended
31 March 2024
Finance cost

Other burrowing costs (increase) 65.51
§65.51
Other expenscs
Administrative and selling expenses (decrease) 165.51)
|65.51)

8 Other Income
Under previous GAAP, Rebale & Discount received from vendors were shown under ‘other income' which has now been reclassified and netted off with 'purchase of raw
material' under Ind AS.

“For the year ended
31 March 2024
Other income
Rebate & Discount (Decrease) ) 16237
16237
Purchase of raw materials
Purchase of raw materials (decnease) 162.37:
(6237

e ———— ey

{Yikis gpuace bas been intentionally kft blank)




NEOQOLITE ZKW LIGHTINGS PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN No. U74899DL1992PTC050702)

N ' sto financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Av-smounts in Rs. lacs, except share data and per share data, and unless otherwise stated)

54 As at 31 March 2025, the Company has foreign currency payebles of Rs 197.98 lace (31 March 2024: Rs 79.90 lacs, 01 April 2023: Rs 54.23 lacs) to various vendors.
-The payable is cutstanding for more than six menths, from the date they were due. Further, the payable also include Rs 88.14 lacs (31 March 2024: Rs 8.67 lacs, 01 April
2023: Rs 19.48 lacs) which is vutstnding for more than 3 years. The Company is in the process of filing the application with the authorised deater for obtaining the
approval for extension of timelines for an amount of Rs 109.84 lacs for payment. The management is of the opinion that the required approval at the time of payment will be
obtained and there would be no legal implication on these balances being outstanding beyond the timelines stipulated in FED Master Direction No. 17/2016-17 on Import of
Goods and Services, as amended, under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (‘FEMA"). Further, in respect of the balance amount of Rs 88.14 lacs the Company is
_in the process of filing an application for obtaining approval for writing it back as per the prevailing guidelings of RB.

55 As at 31 March 2025 the Company has foreign currency receivables amounting to Rs. 629.66 lecs (31 March 2024: Rs 731.88 Iaca 01 Aprif 2023: Rs 186.65 lacs) which
-are outstanding beyond the timelines stipulated in Notification No. FEMA 23(R)2015-RB of Foreign Exchange Management (Export of Goods & Services) Regulations,
* 2015, s amended, and FED Moster Direction No. 17/2016-17 on Import uf Goods and Services, as amended, under Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (‘FEMA”).

The management is in the process t recover such balances. The management is of the opinion that the required approval will be obtained and that there would be no legal

implication on these balances being outstanding beyond the timelines stipulated in FED Master Direction No. 1'7/2016-17 on Import of Goods and Services, as amended,

under the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (‘FEMA").

56 The Company did not appoint an internal auditor as required by Section 138 of the Companies Aut, 2013, and the rules framed thereunder, for the financial year ended
31 March 2024. Conscquently, the auditor has issued a qualified opinion in the Companies (Auditur's Report) Order, 2020 (CARO) report for the year ended 31 March
2024 regarding this matter. ’

57 Events after reporting date .

+Subsequent to the reporting date, the board of directors at its meeting held on 16 September 2025, Mr. Arun Kumar Jain resigned as Company Secretary and was appointed
as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from that date.

In his placé, Mr. Brajesh Kumar Tiwary was appointed as the Company Secretacy of the Company with effect from 16 September 2025.

These changes occurred afler the balance sheet date and do not have any impact on the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2025.

58 Previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to comply with amendments in Schedule Il of the Companies Act. 2013.

Details of regronping sfreclassification

Particulurs Current head Previous head
.Other payable (includes accrued expense/liabilities) Trade payables Other financial liabilities*
Gain on exchange fluctuntion Other operating income Other income

* Other financial liabilities in the earlier year were reflected under other eurrent liabilities.
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for V Sachdeva & Associates [' For and va behalf of the Board of Directors of
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 33rd Annual Report of Neolite ZKW Lightings
Private Limited (“the Company”) together with the audited standalone financial statements
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, along with the Auditors’ Report thereon,
pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

I 1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial highlights of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2025 are as under:

(All amounts are in INR Million, unless otherwise stated)

L. 4.
ot A

REVENUE FROM OPERAT{ONS o 5,120.75 4,026.62

. " PARTICULARS | YEARENDED 31 MARCH2025 & YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024 |

OTHER INCOME 17.15 9.15

' TOTAL INCOME 5,137.90 4,035.77

\y+. .. TOTAL EXPENDITURE 4,415.23 3,772.62
' PROFIT BEFORE TAX (PBT) 722.67 263.15

il i W : | X

1 1 ; e ¥ 1

{2 E ) TAXEXPENSE L 194.43 72.60
.I. ’..:”"{""T'\—_i"l'l' T "";“ T1 R . . o — D mm——
.+ PROFIT-FOR'THE YEAR"| 528.24 190.55

'OTHER COMPREHENSIVE IN-

. il (6.45) {0.14)

. COME




PARTICULARS YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE IN-
COME

| BASIC EPS (FACE VALUE 100
Kiitn's EAGHY)

DILUTED EPS

During FY 2024-25, the Company earned a net profit of ¥722.67 million as compared to
3263.15 million in the previous financial year, reflecting robust operational and financial

performance.

| 2. ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to S'ection-92(3)¥of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return of the Company
has been placed on its website and can be accessed at:

Annual Return Form MGT-7-2023-24.pdf

I 3. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS AND REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the financial year 2024-25, the Company continued to strengthen its position as a
leading manufacturer of automotive lighting systems, serving both domestic OEMs and
international customers. The operations remained robust across all business segments, with
particular growth recorded in export sales and premium LED product lines.

" Key business developments during the year included execution of long-term supply
agreements with marquee automobile manufacturers, investment in new production lines
at the Company’s Bahadurgarh plant, and roll-out of automation and digitalization
initiatives to enhance operational efficiency. The Company has maintained its financial year
ending March 31. Capital expenditure during the year was primarily directed towards
expansion of LED module production capacity and modernization of testing laboratories to
meet evolving regulatory and customer requirements.



Further, the Company pursued expansion and diversification initiatives, including evaluation
of new product segments in adaptive lighting and advanced driver-assistance system
(ADAS) compatible lighting solutions. Significant steps were also taken for development,
registration, and protection of Intellectual Property Rights, with several new design
registrations and patent applications filed to strengthen the Company’s technology
portfolio. Apart from the above, no other material events occurred that have adversely
impacted the affairs of the Company.

Change in the Nature of Business

.................................................................................................................................................................

There was no change in: the nature of business of the Company during the year. The
Company continues to be engaged in the design, development, manufacturing and supply
of automotive lighting systems.

During the year under review, the Company earned:
Net Revenue from Sale of Products: 34,571.12 million
Revenue from Sale of Services: ¥484.11 million

Other Operating Revenue: 65.52 million

Other Income: X17.15 million (interest income, write-back of provisions, lease adjustments,
and fair value gains on investments).

Accordingly, the Total Comprehensive Income for FY 2024-25 stood at $521.79 million, as
against ¥190.41 million in the previous year, underscoring the Company’s strong growth
momentum.

Material Changes and Commitments Affecting the Financial Position of
the Company

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of
the Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial year March 31, 2025
and the date of this Report. The Company continues to operate in a stable environment,
and there have been no significant external or internal events, including technical, legal or
financial matters, strikes, lockouts or breakdowns, which may have a bearing on the
business or operations of the Company. Accordingly, no remedial measures were required
to be undertaken by the Board.



Revision of Financial Statements or the Report

The Company has not revised its financial statements or the Report in respect of any of the
three preceding financial years, either voluntarily or pursuant to an order of any judicial
authority.

| 4. DIvVIDEND

In accordance with Section 134(3)(k) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board reports that no
dividend has been declaréd for the year under review.

l 9. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review, the Board has not transferred any amount to reserves
pursuant to Section 134(3)(j) of the Act.

! 6. CAPITAL AND DEBT STRUCTURE

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, there has been no change in the
authprised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company. The Company has
not undertaken any reclassification or sub-division of authorised share capital, reduction of
share capital, buy-back of shares, or restructuring of its capital structure, nor has there been
any change in the voting rights of shareholders.

The Company has not issued any equity shares, preference shares, or other convertible
securities during the year. No equity shares with differential rights, sweat equity shares,
employee stock options, or shares held in trust for the benefit of employees were issued or
cutstanding during the year under review.

Further, the Company has not issued any debentures, bonds, non-convertible securities, or
warrants, and has not raised any funds by way of preferential allotment, private placement,
or public issue during the financial year. Accordingly, there are no disclosures required in
respect of issue price, conversion terms, coupon rate, maturity dates, or any other related

conditions.



Loans and Borrowings: The details of loans and borrowings of the Company may be
referred to in Schedule 14 and Schedule 20 of the Financial Statements.

I 1. CREDIT RATING OF SECURITIES

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has ncot obtained any credit
rating in respect of its securities, as no rated instruments were issued during the year.

I 8. INVESTOR EDUGATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

During the financial year ended March 31, 2025, the Company was not required to transfer
any amount or shares to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). As on the date
of this Report, there is no unclaimed/unpaid dividend, matured deposits, matured
debentures, redemption amount of preference shares, application money due for refund, or
sale proceeds of fractional shares lying with the Company that are liabie to be transferred
to the IEPF. No donations or other amounts were transferred to the IEPF during the year,

9. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As on March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors of the Company cOmp'rised{
Mr. Rajesh Jain - Managing Director

Ms. Vaishali Jain - Director

Mr. Wilhelm Franz Xaver Steger - Nominee Director (ZKW Group GmbH) "
The Key Managerial Personnel of the Company are:

Mr. Arun Kumar Jain - Compariy Secretary

There were no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors or Key Maznagerial
Personnel during the financial year under review except the following



Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

After the close of the financial year, the following changes took place in the composition of
the Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

Mr. Rajesh Jain was appointed as the Managing Director of the Company with effect from
16th September 2025. Mr. Arun Kumar Jain resigned from the office of Company Secretary
with effect from the close of business hours on 16th September 2025 and was designated
as Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 17th September 2025. Mr.
Brajesh Kumar Tiwary was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company with effect
from 17th September 2025. Further, Mr. Won Yong Hwang was appointed as an Additional
Director with effect from 19th September 2025, while Mr. Wilhelm Franz Xaver Steger
resigned from the office of Director with effect from 19th September 2025.

Independent Directors

The requirement relating to appointment of Independent Directors under Section 149 of
the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, related disclosures
are not required.

Declaration of Independence and Code of Conduct

Since the provisions relating to Independent Directors are not applicable to the Company,
this disclosure is not required.

Meetings of the Board

During FY 2024-25, the Board met four times i.e., on 29-05-2024, 24-09-2024,
13-12-2024 and 14-01-2025. The maximum interval between any two meetings did not
exceed the statutory limit prescribed under Section 173 of the Act.

Attendance of Directors:

NAME OF DIRECTOR - ' MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED

MR. RAJESH JAIN

MS. VAISHALI JAIN




NAME OF DIRECTOR MEETINGS HELD MEETINGS ATTENDED

MR. WILHELM ERANZ XAVER
STEGER

Committees of the Board

The Company has constituted Committees of the Board in compliance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, as set out below:

(a) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

Pursuant to Section 135 of the Act, the Company has constituted a CSR Committee
comprising:

Mr. Rajesh Jain ~ Chairperson
Ms. Vaishali Jain - Member

The Comfnittee met during the year and monitored the implementation of the Company's
CSR Policy. The annual report on CSR activities undertaken during FY 2024-25 forms part
of this Report as Annexure B

(b) Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

In terms of Section 177(9) of the Act, the Company has established a Vigil Mechanism for
Directors and employees to report genuine concerns. The Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower
Policy provides adequate safeguards against victimisation and is available on the website of
the Company at Whistle Blower Policy.

(c) Other Committees

The provisions relating to constitution of an Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration
Committee, and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee under the Companies Act, 2013 and
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, related
disclosures are not required.



Audit Committee Recommendations

Since the requirement of constituting an Audit Committee is not applicable to the
Company, this disclosure is not required.

Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors

The requirement of formulating and disclosing a policy on Directors' appointment and
remuneration under Section 178 of the Act is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly,
related disclosures are not required.

Board Evaluation

The provisions of formal evaluation of the Board, its Committees and individual Directors
under Section 134(3)(p) of the Act are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, no such
evaluation has been carried out. '

Remuneration of Directors and Employees

The disclosures relating to remuneration of Directors and employees under Section 197 of
the Act and Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, related disclosures
are not required.

I 10. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company's CSR initiatives and activities are aligned to the requirements of Section 135
of the Act. A brief outline of the CSR policy and the initiatives undertaken by the Company
on CSR activities during the year under review are set out in Annexure B of this report in
the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014. This Policy is available on the Company’s website at Microsoft Word - CSR
Policy_Neolite.docx



I 11. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions entered into by the Company during FY 2024-25 were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. No material related party
transactions requiring approval under Section 188 of the Act were entered into during the
year. The particulars of related party transactions, in the prescribed Form AOC-2, are
annexed as Annexure A.

I 12. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors hereby confirm
that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures:

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit and loss of the company for that period;

{c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the company and for preventing and detecﬁng fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

I 13. INTERNAL AUDIT AND INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Act, the Company has appointed M/sPramod Harish and
Associates, Chartered Accountants, as the Internal Auditor. The Internal Auditor reports
directly to the Board. The Board confirms that adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements were in place and operating effectively during FY
2024-25.



I 14. FRAUDS REPORTED BY THE AUDITORS

During the year under review, there were no instances of fraud reported by the Statutory
Auditor, or Cost Auditor of the Company under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013 to the Board of Directors or to the Central Government.

15. DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture company as on
March 31, 2025, nor has any company become or ceased to be a subsidiary, associate or
joint venture during the year under review and till the date of this Report.

' 16. DETAILS OF DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public
or its members within the meaning of Sections 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder. Accordingly, there were no deposits remaining unpaid or
unclaimed as at March 31, 2025, nor has there been any default in repayment of deposits
or payment of interest thereon during the year. Company has also not accepted any
deposits in contravention of the provisions of the Act and no orders have been passed by
NCLT/NCLAT relating to deposits.

l 17 PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

During the year under review, the Company has not given any loans, provided any
guarantees, or made any investments falling within the purview of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.



| 18. RISK MANAGEMENT

In accordance with Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
developed and implemented a Risk Management Policy which provides for identification,
assessment, mitigation and monitoring of various business risks, including financial,
operational, compliance and strategic risks. The Policy also identifies elements of risk, if any,
which, in the opinion of the Board, may threaten the existence of the Company.

I 19. WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM

The Board has adopted a Whistle Blower Palicy to strengthen corporate governance. The
policy provides a mechanism for reporting genuine concerns relating to unethical behaviour
or violation of Company’s policies,No complaints were received under this mechanism
during FY 2024-25,

20. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN
AT WORKPLAGE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL)
ACT, 2013

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. During the year under review, the number of
complaints of sexual harassment received was NIL : the number of complaints disposed of
during the year was NIL ; and the number of cases pending for more than ninety days was
NIL

21. GONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE

Pursuant to Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars in respect of
conservation of energy, technology absorption, research & development and foreign
exchange earnings and outgo form part of this Report as Annexure C.



| 22. cost RECORDS

The Company has maintained cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act and
such accounts and records are duly maintained.

| 23. aubiTors

Statutory Auditors

..................................................................................................................................................................

M/s. V Sachdeva & Associates, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company at the 30th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) for a term of five
consecutive years, to hold office until the conclusion of the 35th AGM. They have
conducted the statutory audit of the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2025. The Auditors’ Report is annexed to the financial statements and forms part of this
Annual Report. The report does not contain any qualification, reservation, or adverse
remark. Further, during FY 2024-25, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident
of fraud under Section 143{12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

InternalAuditors

.................................................................................................................................................................

The Company has appointed M/s. Pramod Harish and Associates, Chartered Accountants,
as Internal Auditors for FY 2024-25. The Internal Auditors periodically report their findings
on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls to the management, and their
observations have been placed before the Board.

Cost Auditors.

.................................................................................................................................................................

In accordance with Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has maintained
cost records and appointed M/s. V.K. Gupta & Co., Cost Accountants, as the Cost Auditors
of the Company for FY 2024-25. The Cost Audit Report will be filed with the Central
Government within the prescribed timelines.



SecretarialAuditor

Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, secretarial Audit is not applicable to
the Company.

‘24. EXPLANATIONS IN RESPONSE TO AUDITOR'S
QUALIFICATION

The Statutory Auditor, in their report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, has not
made any qualification.

Qualification: NIL
Board’s Response; Not required

Further, there were no qualifications,.reservations or adverse remarks made by the Cost
Auditor or the Internal Auditor in their respective reports for FY 2024-25.

! 25. FAILURE TO IMPLEMENT ANY CORPORATE ACTION

During the year under review, the Company has not failed to complete or implement any
corporate action within the prescribed time limits. No instances relating to buy-back of
securities, payment of dividend, mergers, de-mergers, delisting, split or issue of any
securities remained pending or unimplemented during the year.

! 26. MATERIAL ORDERS GF JUDICIAL BODIES / REGULATORS

During the year under review and up to the date of this Report, no significant or material
orders have been passed by any Regulator, Court, Tribunal, Statutory or quasi-judicial
authority which impact the going concern status of the Company or its future operations.



2], INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE / ONE-TIME
SETTLEMENT

No application was made or proceeding initiated against the Company under the Insolvency
and Bankruptcy Code, 2016, nor was any one-time settlement entered into with banks or
financial institutions during the year.

| 28. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board confirms compliance with the applicable provisions.ovf Secretarial Standards
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

I 29 ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT AND VALUATION -

The details of the difference between the amount of valuation done at the time of one-time
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from Banks or Financial Institutions,
along with the reasons thereof, are NIL as no such valuation has taken place

i 30 DISCLOSURE MATERNITY BENEFITS ACT, 1961

The Company hereby states that it has complied with the provisions relating to the
Maternity Benefits Act, 1961, during the year under review.

s J1. OTHER DISCLOSURES

(a) The Company is not required to prepare Consolidated Financial Statements since it
does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, only the Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025 are being
presented.

(b) During the year, the Company continued to focus on stakeholder engagement,
customer relationship management, and sustainability. Key initiatives included
strengthening long-term customer partnerships, enhancing product quality, ensuring
compliance with environment and safety standards, and undertaking Corporate Social



Responsibility (CSR) projects in education, heaithcare, and environmental sustainability.
The Company also implemented measures to promote occupational health and workplace
safety across all its facilities.

{c) There has been no delay in holding the Annual General Meeting of the Company for
the financial year 2024-25.

(d) Pursuant to Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Central Government has
prescribed the maintenance of cost records for certain products of the Company.
Accordingly, the Company has duly maintained such cost records and accounts for the year
ended March 31, 2025.

§ 32. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the continued support and
cooperation received from shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers, financial
institutions, employees and all other stakeholders during the year.

Ve

For and mn behalf of the Board of Directors

Neolite » KN nghuugs Prlvate Limited

___________ f__,z_";
R‘aj SF\Xam Vaiéhalijain
Raging DIFECtOV Director
DlN 01481291 DIN: 01481308
1/
Place:
Date:
Annexure A
FORM AQDC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties are referred to in the Financial Statements - Note 39 | All the transactions
were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis. No material
transactions requiring approval of the shareholders were entered into during the year.



Annexure B

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8 of the Companies (CSR
Policy) Rules, 2014]

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company has a CSR Policy in place, duly approved by the Board of Directors, in line
with the provisions of Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. The Policy lays down the
guiding principles for selection, implementation and monitoring of CSR activities, with focus
on education, healthcare, environmental sustainability, rural development and other
activities specified in Schedule VII. The CSR Policy is available on the Company's website at:
Microsoft Word - CSR Policy_Neolite.docx

Composition of CSR Committee:

NAME OF DIRECT- : | MEETINGS ATTEN-
AME L DESIGNATION MEETINGS HELD EETING
,OR , i DED
Mr. Rajesh Jain Chairman 2
Ms. Vaishali Jain Member 2 2

The web-link(s) where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company: neolitezkw.co m/zkw/
pdf/csr_projects_neolitezkw.pdf

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment ofCSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rale 8, if applicable.: NA

(a) Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135. Rs.
251millions

Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) of section 135.:
Rs. 5.02millions

Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years.: NA

Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any.: NA



Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d): Rs. 5.02millions

6.(a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing
Project). : Rs. 5.02millions

(b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads.NIL
{c.) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable.: NA
Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(e)]. Rs. 5.02millions

CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:Rs. 5.02millions, unspent NIL

TOTAL
AMOUNT
SPENT FOR DATE OF NAME OF THE DATE OF

AMOUNT, AMOUNT.
THE FINAN- TRANSFER. FUND TRANSFER.

CIALYEAR. (IN
RS.)

(f) Excess amount for set-off, if any;

PARTICULAR AMOUNT {IN RS.) MILLION

(2) (3)
Two percent of average net profit
of the company as per sub-section 5.02
(5) of section 135
Total amount spent for the
) . 5.02
Financial Year
Excess amount spent for the NA
Financial Year [iii)- 1))
Surplus arising out of the CSR
projects or programmes or
gy . . . NA
activities of the previous Financial
Years, if any
Amount available for set off in NA
succeeding Financial Years [(ili)=(iv)]




7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three
Financial Years:

SL. NO,

el BALANCE
TRANS-
AMOUNT
FERRED IN N AMOUNT
TO U'N- ST AMOUNT TRANS- | REMAIN-
SPEllNT CSR AC. AMOUNT | FERRED TOAFUND | INGTO
PRECED- | CSRAC- COUNT SPENT IN | AS SPECIFIED UN- | BE SPENT DELICIE
ING FIN- | COUNT UNDER THE FIN- | DER SCHEDULE VIl | IN SUC- NCY. IF
ANCIAL | UNDER cUR) ANCIAL AS PER SECOND CEEDING Y
YEAR(S}) SUB- SECTION YEAR({IN | PROVISO TO SUB- FINAN-
SECTION (6) OF RS) SECTION (5) OF SEC- CIAL
{6) OF SECTION TION 135, IF ANY | YEARS (IN
SECTION 135 (IN RS)
135 (IN RS)
RS.)
Date of
(in Rs) Transfer
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
NA NA NA NA NA NA—‘ NA
— o | s o=
NA NA NA NA NA NA NA

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount sent in the Financial Year:

No

If Yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: NA

Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:



SHORT
PARTICU-
LARS OF

THE PROP-

ERTYOR | "oiNcODE CSR REGIS
ASSETIS): | e e AMOUNT | o ATiON RE
[INCLUD- DATEOF | OFCSR

PROPERTY NUMBER. NAME GISTERED
ING COM- CREATION | AMOUNT

- - s
e ORAS cpeng | IFAPPLIC ADDRESS

SET(S AB
ADDRESS &) =

| AND LOC-. | . i te
ATION OF
THE PROP-
ERTY]

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no,
Municipal Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the
area of the immovable property as well as boundaries)

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per subsection (5) of section 135.: NA

For and\on behalf of the Board of Directors

\ \ // v .7

aishali Jain
Director
DIN: 01481308

Raj&sh Jai
Managing Directer
DIN: 01481291

Annexure G

Conservation of Energy, Yechnology Abserption and Foreign Exchange Earnings &
Dutgo

[Pursuant to Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]



A. Conservation of Energy

The Company continues to adopt energy efficient practices across its manufacturing
facilities and offices. Steps taken include use of LED lighting, energy-efficient machinery,
and regular energy audits to identify saving opportunities.

PARTICULARS DETAILS
STEPS TAKEN FOR ENERGY CONSERVATION Use of energy=-efficient equnp.ment, automation, and
. LED lighting
STEPS TAKEN FOR UTILIZING ALTERNATE Solar panels installed at plant, procurement of green
SOURCES OF ENERGY energy where feasible

B. Technology Absorption

Efforts made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation include:

PARTICULARS

EFFORTS MADE Inhouse

Improved product quality, reduced defects, enhanced

BENEFITS DERIVED . .
customer satisfaction

IMPORTED TECHNOLOGY (LAST 3 YEARS) NIL

C. Foreign Exchange Earningé and Butgo

(TS .
Peatiy
R PR

FY 2023-24% IN MILLIONS)

\PARTICULARS | |FY2024-25 (X IN MILLIONS)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO NIL




